
For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

AGENDA 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

October 5
th

 2011 

2:00 p.m. 

 

 

  1-CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 

  2-REPORTS 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

   3-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 

 

  4-CONSENT AGENDA 
TAB F  Minutes of September 21

st
, 2011 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

TAB G  Letter of Support for Urban/Residential Cost Share Program – Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

 

    5-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

TAB H  Renee Hoover, Finance Director 

 

   6-PUBLIC HEARING  

None 

     

   7-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 

TAB I  JAUNT’s Annual Report – Donna Shaunesey, JAUNT Executive Director 

TAB J  Central Virginia Regional Jail Expansion Update – Glenn Aylor, Superintendent   

Blue Ridge Mass Appraisal Reassessment Presentation – Matthew P. Hickey, Vice President Blue Ridge  

Mass Appraisal Company, LLC 

 

   8-ACTION MATTERS 

TAB K  Contract for webGIS Services & Site Enhancements – Darren Coffey, Planning Director 

TAB L  Town of Columbia Request for Services – Pat Groot, Grants Administrator 

TAB M  Contract approval for DeltAlert, Emergency/Mass Notification Vendor – Tammy Johnson,   

Communications Director 

TAB Mc  Thomas Jefferson Regional Brownfield Assessment and Planning Grant – Pat Groot, Grants  

Administrator/Darren Coffey, Planning Director 
 

  9-OLD BUSINESS 

TAB N  Economic Development Position Description – Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

10-NEW BUSINESS 

 

11-PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 

 

 12-CLOSED MEETING 

  Discuss Real Property Acquisition  

 

13-ADJOURN 

  



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  

711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

 

 

********** 
Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  

of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  

one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 

********** 

ORDER 

 
1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of order in 

preference to all other members. 

 

2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed until after 

the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the disorder or the 

bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 

 

3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use such tactics.  

The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board may vote to overrule both. 

 

4.    When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may order the  

       person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property. 





Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 1 

 

  FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

September 21
st
, 2011 

7:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman  

    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker 

Joe Chesser 

    Chris Fairchild 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

    Fred Payne, County Attorney 

    Darren K. Coffey, Director of Planning 

    John Robins, Public Works Director 

    Betty Scholl, Administrative Assistant, Part-time 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Gooch called the meeting of September 21

st
, 2011, to order at 7:00 p.m., in the Circuit 

Courtroom of the New Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was 

recited, after which, Chairman Gooch called for a moment of silence. 

 

REPORTS 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, reported on the following topics: 

 New Employee – Andrew Pompei was hired as a planner in the Planning Department. 

 Employee Picnic – will be held on October 6, 2011, 5pm at Pleasant Grove Pole Barn. 

 Inaugural Wine Festal – Chamber of Commerce Wine Festal on September 24, 2011, 

from 11am to 6pm at 151 Starlite Park. 

 Micro Enterprise Conference – attended a Micro Enterprise conference at the Federal 

Reserve in Richmond with EDA’s and EDC’s. 

 Old Farm Day – Saturday, October 1, 2011, from 9am to 4pm at Pleasant Grove. 

 Chamber After Hours – October 13, 2011, from 5:30pm to 7:30pm at UVA, Bryant Hall. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 

 Elizabeth Franklin, Fluvanna Taxpayers Association – addressed the Board in reference 

to reassessment memo. 

 Dennis Holder, Kents Store – addressed the Board in reference to reassessment memo, 

opposed to awarding Blue Ridge Appraisal Company, also spoke in reference to a hiring 

freeze. 

 Adrian Miller, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in reference to Fluvanna helping 

Louisa with earthquake cleanup.   

 With no one wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the first round of public comments. 

 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 2 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 

 MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to approve the consent agenda, which consisted of: 

 Minutes of September 7
th

, 2011. 

 Proclamation/Domestic Violence Awareness Month. 

Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  

None 

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

None 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
ZTA 11:02, Fluvanna County – Telecommunications Ordinance - An ordinance to amend and 

reenact portions of Chapter 22 of the Fluvanna County Code, with respect to the regulation of 

telecommunication facilities. The purpose of the proposed amendments is to establish general 

guidelines for the siting of telecommunications antenna support facilities used for wireless 

telecommunications and broadcast facilities, including the support facility, antenna(s), ground 

equipment, and accessory facilities related to telecommunications infrastructure. These 

amendments are necessary in order for the Board of Supervisors, Planning Commission, and 

Planning Department staff to allow for the effective and efficient deployment of 

telecommunication facilities throughout the County, while minimizing the unnecessary 

proliferation of such facilities, by allowing for increased structure heights and requiring 

colocation of facilities.  Mr. Darren Coffey, Planning Director and Ms. Susan Rabold, CityScape 

Consultant, addressed the board in regards to this request.  Ms. Rabold reviewed the proposed 

amendments and general guidelines for the siting of telecommunications antenna support 

facilities used for wireless telecommunication and broadcast facilities, including the support 

facility, antenna(s), ground equipment, and accessory facilities related to telecommunications 

infrastructure. 

Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 

 Elizabeth Franklin, Columbia District – addressed the Board in regards to likes and 

dislikes of this ordinance, should be fair to all citizens, no by-right for any concealed 

towers. 

 Dennis Holder, Columbia District – addressed the Board in regards to citizens and 

property value that would be affected by this ordinance along with concerns on 

grammatical errors and definitions. 

 Barry Bibb, Cunningham District – addressed the Board in support of this ordinance. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing.  

Discussion – Mr. Coffey reviewed with the Board the regulations and reasons for by-right and 

Special Use Permits.   

 MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to adopt the attached ordinance to amend and reenact portions 

of Chapter 22 of the Fluvanna County Code, with respect to the regulation of 

telecommunication facilities, including the repeal of Sections 22-17-14 and 14.1, 

and the addition of Article 27.   Mr. Kenney seconded.  The motion carried with a 

vote of 5-1.  AYES:  Gooch, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  

Weaver.  ABSENT:  None 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 3 

 

PRESENTATIONS 

Piedmont Virginia Community College Annual Report – Dr. Frank Friedman, PVCC President, 

discussed the enrollment growth and new programs that have been added and will be added in 

the future for the students.    

 

Fluvanna County Library Annual Report for FY 11 – Ms. Cyndi Hoffman, Librarian, reviewed 

with the Board the increasing participation, collections, activities and new programs  at the 

library. 

 

ACTION MATTERS 
Rebidding of Fork Union Firehouse – Mr. John Robins, Public Works Director, addressed the 

Board regarding this item.  The bids for this project came in well over budget.  Mr. Robins 

suggested having the architect redesign this project to get it into the budgeted amount and 

advertise for rebidding. 

 MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved to reject all bids received for the construction of the Fork 

Union Firehouse due to their being significantly over budget and to direct the 

architect, DJG, Inc., to complete a modified design to advertise for rebidding.  

Mr. Kenney seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  

None 

 

Wireless Telecommunications Facilities Master Plan – Mr. Darren Coffey, Planning Director, 

addressed the Board regarding this item.  This item is closely related to the Telecommunications 

Ordinance that was approved earlier.   Mr. Coffey requested the Board to formally adopt the 

Master Plan.  Mr. Fred Payne, County Attorney, mentioned that this plan will provide guidance 

in applying the Telecommunications Ordinance. 

 MOTION: 

Mr. Chesser moved to adopt the Wireless Telecommunications Facilities Master 

Plan as prepared by CityScape Consultants, Inc. and dated July 20, 2011 to 

establish general guidelines for the siting of telecommunications antenna support 

facilities used for wireless telecommunications and broadcast facilities including 

the support facility, antenna(s), ground equipment, and accessory facilities related 

to telecommunications infrastructure.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried 

with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and 

Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

Committee Report & Recommended Action for Awarding a Reassessment Firm for the 2013 

General Reassessment – Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, reviewed with the Board the 

selection process the committee used to select the candidates for the reassessment.  The 

committee chose to interview Wampler & Eanes and Blue Ridge Mass Appraisal.  The 

committee recommended Blue Ridge Mass Appraisal as the firm to use.   

After some discussion the Board made the following motion: 

 MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved to accept Blue Ridge Mass Appraisal bid.  Mr. Weaver 

seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-1.  AYES:  Gooch, Booker, 

Kenney, Fairchild and Weaver.   NAYS:  Chesser.  ABSENT:  None 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 4 

 

 

Economic Development Business Plan – Mr. Chesser suggested that a subcommittee be 

appointed to review and update the Economic Development Business Plan and to discuss the 

Economic Development Director position.  Chairman Gooch appointed the following individuals 

to an Economic Development subcommittee: Mr. Joe Chesser, Mr. Shaun Kenney, Mr. Steve 

Scott, Mr. Darren Coffey and a Chamber of Commerce Representative.  The Board directed the 

County Administrator to present a plan to hire an Economic Development Director along with a 

position description at the October 5, 2011 meeting. 

 

Aqua Virginia – Mr. Weaver asked how the Aqua Virginia discussions were going.  Mr. Chesser 

reviewed with the Board the different options that were being examined. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
Mrs. Booker asked about a section of road that Emergency vehicles couldn’t reach. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the second round of public comments. 

 Mel Sheridan, Columbia District – addressed the Board in regards to keeping the 

Reassessment Committee together during the reassessment to get progress updates. 

 Len Gardner, Rivanna District – addressed the board in regards to wireless clip-on 

microphones. 

 Dennis Holder, Columbia District – addressed the Board in regards to hiring an 

Economic Development Director. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the second segment of public 

comments. 

 

CLOSED MEETING 

MOTION TO ENTER INTO A CLOSED MEETING: 

At 9:57 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors enter 

into a closed meeting, pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.2-3711 of the Code 

of Virginia, 1950, as amended, for the purpose of discussing legal matters.  Mr. 

Kenney seconded. The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  

None. 

 

MOTION TO EXIT A CLOSED MEETING & RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION: 

At 10:45 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the closed meeting be adjourned and the 

Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors convene again in open session. Mr. 

Fairchild seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  

None. 

 

MOTION: 

At 10:46 p.m., the following resolution was adopted by the Fluvanna County 

Board of Supervisors, following a closed meeting held Wednesday, September 

21
st
, 2011, on motion of Mr. Weaver, seconded by Mr. Chesser and carried by the 

following vote: AYES:  Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Chesser, Fairchild and Weaver. 

NAYS: None. ABSENT: None. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 5 

 

 
“BE IT RESOLVED to the best of my knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 

from open meeting requirements under Section 2.2-3711-A of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, 

and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting 

was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting.” 

 

MOTION: 

Mr. Fairchild moved to accept the contract amendments proposed by the SPCA 

for the contract for pound services as shown in the document dated effective 

October 1, 2011attached.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote 

of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Booker, Fairchild, Chesser and Kenney.   

NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None. 

 

ADJOURN 

MOTION: 

At 10:47 p.m., Chairman Gooch adjourned the meeting of Wednesday, September 

21
st
, 2011.   

 

 

        

John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 6 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT PORTIONS OF CHAPTER 22 

OF THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE WITH RESPECT TO THE REGULATION OF 

TELECOMMUNICATION FACILITIES INCLUDING THE REPEAL OF SECTIONS 

22-17-14 AND 14.1, AND THE ADDITION OF ARTICLE 27. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 

pursuant to Virginia Code Section 15.2-2285, that the Fluvanna County Code be, and it is 

hereby, amended as follows: 

 

Sec. 22-17-14. Height regulations applicable to certain structures.  

 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter limiting the height of structures, public and 

semipublic communications structures and public utility structures, not including buildings, may 

be erected to a maximum height of 125 feet, including antennae, with the approval of a special 

use permit pursuant to section 22-17-4 of this chapter, upon a showing by the applicant of the 

following:  
 

(1) The additional height is required for the facility in question for specific identifiable reasons 

of a scientific or engineering nature; and  
 

(2) The height at which the proposed structure is to be erected is the minimum height which will 

reasonably achieve the intended purpose and use of the facility; and  
 

(3) The proposed installation and structure will not endanger the safety of adjoining property 

owners; and  
 

(4) The proposed structure will not be of substantial detriment to adjacent property and the 

character of the district will not be changed as a result of the erection of the structure; and  
 

(5) In the case of structures other than single poles, the structure which is proposed is the 

minimum structure which is adequate for the provision of the service proposed, and a single pole 

cannot be substituted therefore for specific, identifiable reasons, other than cost.  

 

The governing body may permit such structures to be constructed to a height greater than 125 

feet upon showing the foregoing and, in addition, upon a finding that either (a) such additional 

height is necessary to provide essential public safety services which cannot reasonably be 

provided at a lesser height; or (b) such additional height will reasonably facilitate collocation of 

wireless communications antenna on an existing structure. For purposes of this section, the term 

“public safety services” shall be deemed to include (a) the Sheriff of the County; (b) the Virginia 

State Police; (c) any other police agency established under the laws of the Commonwealth and 

certified by the Sheriff as providing public police services within the County; and (d) fire and/or 

emergency medical services companies and departments as defined in Virginia Code Section 27-

8.1. (Ord. 8-2-06)  

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 7 

 

Sec. 22-17-14.1. Special provisions related to amateur radio antennas.  

 

An amateur radio antenna may be deemed to be an accessory structure to any permitted 

use, provided that the same shall conform to the definition of accessory structure. The 

maximum height regulations set forth in the district in which such antenna is located and 

in Sec. 22-17-14 shall not apply to any such antenna; provided that such antenna shall be 

the minimum height which will reasonably achieve its intended purpose as permitted by 

the Federal Communications Commission. There shall be no restriction of the number of 

support structures for such antenna. Reasonable and customary engineering practices shall 

be followed in the erection of such antennas. Any person erecting any such antenna shall 

provide to the zoning administrator a statement from a licensed professional engineer 

certifying that such erection conforms to reasonable and customary engineering practices. 

The zoning administrator shall require that each such antenna be so located as to protect 

adjacent properties and uses in consideration of its design. The zoning administrator may 

require reasonable screening of each such antenna from adjacent properties. (Ord. 6-15-

05) 

 

 

Article 27. Regulation of Telecommunications Facilities. 

  

Sec. 22-27-1. Statement of intent.  

 

The purpose of this article is to establish general guidelines for the siting of telecommunications 

antenna support facilities (TASFs) used for wireless telecommunications and broadcast facilities 

including the support facility, antenna(s), ground equipment, and accessory facilities related to 

telecommunications infrastructure.    

 

The purpose and intent of this article is to promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the 

public, including but not limited to, such instances as: 

 

o Potential injury to people around an antenna support facility and their appurtenant 

compounds;  

 

o Potential damage to property;  

 

o Potential injury and damage to low-flying public and private aircraft; and 

 

o Potential negative economic impacts on the heritage and scenic tourist industry. 

 

Further, the goals of this article are to: 

 

(1)  Minimize the impacts of telecommunication antenna support facilities (TASFs) on 

surrounding land uses by establishing standards for location, structural integrity, and 

compatibility;  

 

(2)  Avoid potential injury to persons and properties from telecommunication antenna support 

facility (TASF) failure and ice hazards through structural standards and setback 

requirements;  



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 8 

 

(3)  Preserve the scenic and visual character of the geographic area by encouraging the location, 

design and architectural treatment of TASFs to avoid the disruption of the natural and built 

environment, and to insure harmony and compatibility with surrounding land use patterns;  

 

(4)  Facilitate the provision of telecommunication services to residents, businesses, and visitors;  

 

(5)  Provide a uniform and comprehensive framework for evaluating proposals for TASFs;  

 

(6)  Encourage builders and tenants of TASFs and antennas to locate them, to the extent 

possible, in areas where the visual impact on the community is minimal;  

 

(7)  Encourage the location and colocation of telecommunication equipment on existing TASFs 

thereby minimizing new visual, aesthetic, and public safety impacts, effects upon the 

natural environment and wildlife, and to reduce the need for additional TASFs;  

 

(8)  Accommodate the growing need and demand for telecommunication services;  

 

(9)  Encourage coordination between suppliers and providers of telecommunication services;  

 

(10)  Establish predictable and balanced codes governing the construction and location of 

TASFs, within the confines of permissible local regulations;  

 

(11)  Establish review procedures to ensure that applications for TASFs are reviewed and acted 

upon within a reasonable period of time;  

 

(12)  Respond to the policies embodied in the Telecommunications Act of 1996, if applicable, in 

such a manner as not to unreasonably discriminate between providers of functionally 

equivalent personal wireless services or to prohibit or have the effect of prohibiting 

personal wireless services;  

 

(13)  Encourage the use of public lands, buildings, and emergency services facilities as locations 

for telecommunications infrastructure demonstrating where possible concealed 

technologies and revenue generating methodologies; and 

 

(14)  Consideration of and compatibility with the goals and objectives of the County’s 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Sec. 22-27-2. Existing telecommunications antenna support facilities. 

 

Telecommunications antenna support facilities (TASFs) existing or permitted prior to the 

adoption of this Article shall be subject to the provisions of Article 16 of this ordinance. 

 

Sec. 22-27-3. Exempt telecommunications antenna support facilities. 

 

The following items are exempt from the provisions of this Article; notwithstanding any other 

provisions: 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 9 

 

(1) Satellite earth stations that are one meter or less in diameter in all residential zoning districts 

and two meters or less in all other zoning districts; and  

 

(2) A government-owned TASF:  

 

A) upon the declaration of a state of emergency by federal, state, or local government, 

and a written determination of public necessity by the County designee; except that 

such facility must comply with all federal and state requirements; and  

B.  erected for the purposes of installing antenna(s) and ancillary equipment necessary to 

provide telecommunications for public health and safety; 

 

(3) A temporary, commercial antenna support facility, upon the declaration of a state of 

emergency by federal, state, or local government, or determination of public necessity by the 

County and approved by the County; except that such facility must comply with all federal 

and state requirements. The telecommunications antenna support facility may be exempt 

from the provisions of this division up to three (3) months after the duration of the state of 

emergency; and  

 

(4) A temporary, commercial antenna support facility, for the purposes of providing coverage of 

a special event such as news coverage or sporting event, subject to administrative zoning 

approval by the County, except that such facility must comply with all federal and state 

requirements. Said telecommunications antenna support facility will be exempt from the 

provisions of this division up to one week after the duration of the special event.  

 

Sec. 22-27-4. Applicability. 

 

This Article shall apply to the development activities including installation, construction, or 

modification of all TASFs including but not limited to: 

 

(1) Antenna support facilities used for amateur radio station antennas;  

  

(2) Existing TASFs;  

 

(3) Proposed TASFs (concealed and non-concealed);  

 

(4) Public antenna support facilities;  

 

(5) Replacement of existing TASFs;  

 

(6) Mitigation of TASFs;  

 

(7) Colocation on an existing TASF;  

 

(8) Attached antenna (concealed and non-concealed);  

 

(9) Broadcast facilities; and  

 

(10) Wireless broadband facilities. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 10 

 

Sec. 22-27-5. Abandonment and/or discontinued use. 
 

In the case of any TASF which was erected pursuant to the provisions of this Article, notice shall 

be provided to the Department of Planning and Community Development when the use of a 

telecommunications antenna support facility is discontinued. If the use of the 

telecommunications antenna support facility has been discontinued for a continuous period of 

two years, then the TASF owner/operator or the property owner shall remove the 

telecommunications antenna support facility, but not including the base (foundation), within 

ninety (90) days of removal notification by the County.  

 

An owner wishing to extend the time for removal or reactivation shall submit an application 

stating the reason for such extension. The County may extend the time for removal or 

reactivation up to sixty (60) additional days upon a showing of good cause. If the TASF and all 

attachments thereto are not removed within this time, the County may give notice that it will 

contract for removal within thirty (30) days following written notice to the owner. Thereafter, the 

County may cause removal of the TASF with costs being borne by the owner.  

 

Upon removal of the TASF, antenna, and equipment compound, the development area shall be 

returned to the extent possible to its natural state, with topography and vegetation consistent with 

the natural surroundings or consistent with the current uses of the surrounding or adjacent land at 

the time of removal.  

 

Sec. 22-27-6. Definitions. 

 

For purposes of this Article 27, the following terms shall be defined as follows: 

 

ABANDONED:  Any antenna support facility without any mounted transmitting and/or 

receiving antennas in continued use. 

 

ALTERNATIVE STRUCTURE:  A facility that is not primarily constructed for the purpose of 

supporting antennas but on which one or more antennas may be mounted. Alternative facilities 

include, but are not limited to, buildings, water tanks, light stanchions, pole signs, billboards, 

church steeples and electric power transmission antenna support facilities. 

 

AMATEUR RADIO TOWER:  Any antenna support facility used for amateur radio 

transmissions consistent with the “Complete FCC U.S. Amateur Part 97 Rules and Regulations” 

for amateur radio facilities. 

 

ANCILLARY STRUCTURE: For the purposes of this Article, any form of development 

associated with a telecommunications facility, including but not limited to: foundations, concrete 

slabs on grade, guy anchors, generators, and transmission cable supports; however, specifically 

excluding equipment cabinets. 

 

ANTI-CLIMBING DEVICE: A piece or pieces of equipment, which are either attached to an 

antenna support facility, or which are freestanding and are designed to prevent people from 

climbing the facility. These devices may include but are not limited to fine mesh wrap around 

facility legs, “squirrel-cones,” or other approved devices, but excluding the use of barbed or 

razor wire.  



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 11 

 

ANTENNA:  Any apparatus designed for the transmitting and/or receiving of electromagnetic 

waves, including but not limited to: telephonic, radio or television telecommunications. Types of 

antenna include, but are not limited to: omni-directional (whip) antennas, sectionalized (panel) 

antennas, multi or single bay (FM & TV), yagi, or parabolic (dish) antennas.  (In most AM 

broadcast station situations the antenna support facility(s) is/are the antennas(s)).  

 

ANTENNA ARRAY:  A group of antenna elements and associated mounting hardware, 

transmission lines, or other appurtenances which share a common attachment device such as a 

mounting frame or mounting support facility for the sole purpose of transmitting or receiving 

electromagnetic waves.  

 

ANTENNA ELEMENT:  Any independent single unit which individually or collectively with 

other elements comprise a transmit/receive antenna. 

 

ANTENNA SUPPORT FACILITY: A vertical projection composed of metal or other material 

with or without a foundation that is designed for the express purpose of accommodating antennas 

at a desired height. Antenna support facilities do not include any device used to attach antennas 

to an existing building, unless the device extends above the highest point of the building by more 

than twenty (20) feet. Types of support facilities include but are not limited to the following: 

guyed, lattice, monopole, concealed flag pole, slick stick, faux tree, faux fire tower, light 

stanchion facilities. 

 

ANTENNA SUPPORT FACILITY BASE: The foundation, usually concrete, on which the 

antenna support facility and other support equipment are situated.  For measurement calculations, 

the antenna support facility base is that point on the foundation reached by dropping a 

perpendicular line from the geometric center of the antenna support facility. 

 

ANTENNA SUPPORT FACILITY HEIGHT: The vertical distance measured from the grade 

line to the highest point of the antenna support facility, including any antenna, lighting, lightning 

protection or other equipment affixed thereto. 

 

ANTENNA SUPPORT FACILITY SITE: The land area that contains, or will contain, a 

proposed antenna support facility, support facility and other related buildings and improvements. 

 

ASR:  The Antenna Facility Registration Number as required by the FAA and FCC. 

 

ATTACHED ANTENNA:  A facility which is not primarily constructed for the purpose of 

holding antenna(s) but on which one or more antenna(s) may be mounted.  Examples include but 

are not limited to water tanks, rooftops, light poles and utility distribution poles. 

 

BASE STATION: The electronic equipment utilized by the telecommunication provider(s) for 

the transmission and reception of radio signals. 

 

BREAKPOINT TECHNOLOGY: The engineering design of a monopole wherein a specified 

point on the monopole is designed to have stresses concentrated so that the point is at least five 

percent more susceptible to failure than any other point along the monopole so that in the event 

of a structural failure of the monopole, the failure will occur at the breakpoint rather than at the 

base plate, anchor bolts, or any other point on the monopole.  For example, on a 100-foot tall 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 12 

 

monopole with a breakpoint at 80 feet, the minimum setback distance would be 22 feet (110 

percent of 20 feet, the distance from the top of the monopole to the breakpoint) or the minimum 

side or rear yard setback requirements for that zoning district, whichever is greater.  

 

BROADCAST FACILITIES: Antenna support facilities, antennas, and/or antenna arrays for 

FM/TV/HDTV broadcasting transmission facilities, and antenna support facility(s) utilized as 

antennas for an AM broadcast station that are licensed by the Federal Communications 

Commission. 

 

COLOCATION: The practice of installing and operating multiple wireless service providers, 

and/or radio common carrier licensees on the same antenna support facility or attached 

telecommunication facility using different and separate antenna, feed lines and radio frequency 

generating equipment. 

 

COMBINED ANTENNA: An antenna or an antenna array designed and utilized to provide 

services for more than one wireless provider, or a single wireless provider utilizing more than 

one frequency band or spectrum, for the same or similar type of services. 

 

CONCEALED: An antenna support facility; ancillary facility; or equipment compound that is 

not readily identifiable as such, and is designed to be aesthetically compatible with existing and 

proposed building(s) and uses on a site. There are two types of concealed facilities: 1) antenna 

attachments, and 2) freestanding. Examples of a concealed attached facility include, but are not 

limited to the following: painted antenna and feed lines to match the color of a building or 

facility, faux windows, dormers or other architectural features that blend with an existing or 

proposed building or facility. Freestanding concealed antenna support facilities usually have a 

secondary, obvious function which may be, but is not limited to the following: church steeple, 

windmill, bell antenna support facility, clock antenna support facility, light standard, flagpole 

with or without a flag, or tree.  

 

DEVELOPMENT AREA: The area occupied by a telecommunications antenna support facility 

including areas inside or under the following: an antenna-support facility’s framework, 

equipment cabinets, ancillary facilities and access ways.  

 

EQUIPMENT CABINET: Any facility above the base flood elevation including: cabinets, 

shelters, pedestals, and other similar facilities. Equipment cabinets are used exclusively to 

contain radio or other equipment necessary for the transmission or reception of wireless 

communication signals.  

 

EQUIPMENT COMPOUND: The fenced area surrounding the ground-based communication 

facility including the areas inside or under the following: an antenna support facility’s 

framework and ancillary facilities such as equipment necessary to operate the antenna on the 

antenna support facility that is above the base flood elevation including: cabinets, shelters, 

pedestals, and other similar facilities.  

 

FAA:  The Federal Aviation Administration. 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 13 

 

FACILITY: Anything constructed or erected, the use of which required permanent location on 

the ground, or attachment to something having a permanent location on the ground, including 

advertising signs. 

 

FCC:  The Federal Communications Commission. 

 

FEED LINES: Cables used as the interconnecting media between the transmission and/or 

receiving base station and the antenna. 

 

FLUSH MOUNTED: Any antenna or antenna array attached directly to the face of the support 

facility or building such that no portion of the antenna extends above the height of the support 

facility or building. Where a maximum flush-mounting distance is given, that distance shall be 

measured from the outside edge of the support facility or building to the inside edge of the 

antenna. 

 

GUYED ANTENNA SUPPORT FACILITY: A style of antenna support facility consisting of a 

single truss assembly composed of sections with bracing incorporated. The sections are attached 

to each other, and the assembly is attached to a foundation and supported by a series of wires that 

are connected to anchors placed in the ground or on a building.    

 

GEOGRAPHIC SEARCH RING: An area designated by a wireless provider or operator for a 

new base station, produced in accordance with generally accepted principles of wireless 

engineering. 

 

HANDOFF CANDIDATE: A wireless communication facility that receives call transference 

from another wireless facility, usually located in an adjacent first “tier” surrounding the initial 

wireless facility. 

 

INTERMODULATION DISTORTION: The preventable and avoidable results of the mixture of 

two certain and specific radio frequencies (3rd Order); or more certain or specific radio 

frequencies (5th Order), that creates at least one other unwanted, undesirable, and interfering 

radio frequency (3rd Order), or multiple other unwanted, undesirable, and interfering radio 

frequency signals (5th Order). 

 

LATTICE ANTENNA SUPPORT FACILITY: A tapered style of telecommunication antenna 

support facility that consists of vertical and horizontal supports with multiple legs, crisscross-

bracing and metal crossed diagonal strips or rods to support antennas.    

 

LEASE VISUALLY OBTRUSIVE PROFILE: The design of a telecommunication antenna 

support facility intended to present a visual profile that is the minimum profile necessary for the 

facility to properly function. 

 

MITIGATION:  A modification of an existing telecommunication antenna support facility to 

increase the height or to improve its integrity, by replacing or removing one or several facilities 

located in proximity to a proposed new antenna support facility in order to encourage compliance 

with this Article or improve aesthetics or functionality of the overall wireless network.  

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 14 

 

MONOPOLE ANTENNA SUPPORT FACILITY:  A style of free-standing telecommunication 

antenna support facility consisting of a single shaft usually composed of two or more hollow 

sections that are in turn attached to a foundation. This type of antenna support facility is designed 

to support itself without the use of guy wires or other stabilization devices. These facilities are 

mounted to a foundation that rests on or in the ground or on a building’s roof.  

 

NON-CONCEALED:  A telecommunication antenna support facility that is readily identifiable 

as such and can be either freestanding or attached.  

 

PERSONAL WIRELESS SERVICE: Commercial mobile services, licensed or unlicensed 

wireless services, and common carrier wireless exchange access services, as defined in the 

Telecommunications Act of 1996. 

 

PUBLIC SAFETY TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY: All telecommunications equipment 

utilized by a public entity for the purpose of ensuring the safety of the citizens of the County  and 

operating within a frequency range of, including but not limited to, 150 MHz, 450 MHz, 700 

MHz, 800 MHz, 1,000 MHz, VHF, UHF, and any future spectrum allocations at the direction of 

the FCC. 

 

RADIO FREQUENCY EMISSIONS: Any electromagnetic radiation or other 

telecommunications signal emitted from an antenna or antenna-related equipment on the ground, 

antenna support facility, building, or other vertical projection. 

 

REPLACEMENT ANTENNA SUPPORT FACILITY: The removal of an existing 

telecommunication antenna support facility for purposes of erecting a new telecommunication 

antenna support facility for the purposes of improving structural integrity.   

 

SATELLITE EARTH STATION: A single or group of parabolic (or dish) antennas are mounted 

to a support device that may be a pole or truss assembly attached to a foundation in the ground, 

or in some other configuration. A satellite earth station may include the associated separate 

equipment cabinets necessary for the transmission or reception of wireless telecommunications 

signals with satellites. 

 

TELECOMMUNICATION ANTENNA SUPPORT FACILITY (hereinafter “TASF”: Any 

staffed or unstaffed location for the transmission and/or reception of radio frequency signals, or 

other telecommunications, and usually consistent of an antenna support facility (see definition), 

feed lines, base station(s), and antenna(s) and antenna array(s).  The following are included in the 

telecommunication antenna support facility: new, mitigated, replacement, and/or existing 

concealed and non-concealed antenna support facilities, public antenna support facilities, 

colocations, antenna attachments, broadcast, and wireless broadband facilities.   

 

WIRELESS BROADBAND FACILITY: An unstaffed location for the wireless transmission 

and/or reception of broadband data services exclusively, usually consisting of an antenna support 

facility, an antenna or group of antennas, transmission cables, and equipment cabinets. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 15 

 

 

Sec. 22-27-7. Siting hierarchy.  

  

Siting of a new antenna array or new TASF shall be in accordance with the preferred siting 

hierarchy in the order outlined below.  All siting options are preferred to be located on publicly-

owned property, as identified in the County’s Telecommunications Master Plan, as a first option.  

The location of antenna array or other facilities on non publicly-owned property is acceptable as 

a secondary option within each category. 

(1) Concealed attached antenna 

(2) Colocation; antenna modification; combined antenna(s) on existing TASF  

(3) Colocation or new TASF in utility right-of-way 

(4) Non-concealed attached antenna 

(5) Replacement of existing TASF 

(6) Mitigation of existing TASF 

(7) Concealed freestanding TASF 

(8) Non-concealed freestanding TASF 

(a)  Monopole 

(b) Lattice 

(c) Guyed 

 

The order of ranking preference, highest to lowest, shall be from 1 to 8c.  Where a lower ranked 

alternative is proposed, the applicant must file relevant information as indicated in the 

development standards in this Article including, but not limited to, an affidavit by a radio 

frequency engineer demonstrating that despite diligent efforts to adhere to the established 

hierarchy within the geographic search area, higher ranked options are not technically feasible, 

practical or justified given the location of the proposed TASF.  

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 16 

 

Sec. 22-27-8. Siting preference table. 

 

New antennas and TASFs shall be allowed per the Siting Preference Table.  The column on the 

left identifies the County’s zoning district classifications.  The columns across the top lists the 

different TASFs listed in the siting hierarchy.   

 

Siting Preference Table 

Zoning 

Districts 

 

Permitted Telecommunications Facilities & Level of Development Standards 

 

Amateur 

Radio Facility 

& Comparable 

Antenna 

Element  

Replacement 

Concealed Attached; 

Antenna Colocation, 

Antenna Modification; 

Noncomparable Antenna 

Element Replacement, 

Combining; and Non-

concealed Attached Antenna 

 

 

 

Replacement 

Antenna 

Support  

Facility 

Mitigation of 

Existing 

Antenna 

Support  

Facility  

Concealed 

Freestanding 

Antenna 

support  

facility 

Non-Concealed 

Freestanding 

Antenna  

support facility 

 

 

 

 

 

Broadcast 

Facility 

A-1 B B B S B S S 

R-1 B B B S B S Not allowed 

R-2 B B B S S* Not allowed Not allowed 

R-3 B B B S S* Not allowed Not allowed 

R-4 B B B S S* Not allowed Not allowed 

B-1 B B B S B S Not allowed 

B-C B B B S B S Not allowed 

I-1 B B B S B S S 

I-2 B B B S B S S 

MHP B B B S B Not allowed Not allowed 

PUD B B B S B S S 

 

B: By Right – Administrative 

S: Special Use Permit – Public Hearing Process 

S* Any mitigation of an existing SUP requires an amendment through the SUP process  

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 17 

 

Sec. 22-27-9.  Development standards.  

 

Sec. 22-27-9.1.  Special provisions related to amateur radio antennas.  

 

An amateur radio antenna may be deemed to be an accessory structure to any permitted use, 

provided that the same shall conform to the definition of accessory structure. The maximum 

height regulations shall not apply to any such antenna; provided that such antenna shall be the 

minimum height which will reasonably achieve its intended purpose as permitted by the Federal 

Communications Commission. There shall be no restriction of the number of support structures 

for such antenna. Reasonable and customary engineering practices shall be followed in the 

erection of such antennas. Any person erecting any such antenna shall provide to the zoning 

administrator a statement from a licensed professional engineer certifying that such erection 

conforms to reasonable and customary engineering practices. The zoning administrator shall 

require that each such antenna be so located as to protect adjacent properties and uses in 

consideration of its design. The zoning administrator may require reasonable screening of each 

such antenna from adjacent properties. (Ord. 6-15-05)  Additionally the applicant shall provide a 

valid FCC amateur operator’s license.  

 

Sec. 22-27-9.2.  Antenna element replacement. 

 

For any replacement of a comparable existing antenna element (size, weight and frequency) on 

an antenna support facility, prior to making such replacement, the applicant shall submit and 

provide the following: 

 

(1)  A written statement setting forth the reasons for the replacement;  

 

(2) A stamped or sealed certification from a registered professional engineer that the replacement 

antenna(s) (i) have a lower wind and weight profile; (ii) the number of antenna elements will 

not increase, (iii) there is no significant change in frequency utilization; and (iv) there is no 

requirement for a new structural analysis; and  

 

(3)  There shall be no increase in the size or number of existing feed lines utilized for the existing 

antenna and/or antenna array. 

 

Sec. 22-27-9.3.  Concealed attached antenna.  

 

Concealed attached antenna shall be subject to the following: 

 

(1) The top of the attached antenna shall not be more than twenty (20) feet above the existing or 

proposed building or facility; and  

 

(2) When an attached antenna is to be located on a nonconforming building or facility, then the 

existing permitted nonconforming setback shall prevail; and  

   

(3)  Feed lines, antennas and hardware shall be designed to architecturally match the façade, roof, 

wall, or facility on which they are affixed so that they blend with the existing structural 

design, color, and texture; and  

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 18 

 

(4) Equipment cabinets shall be located within the existing building or behind an opaque 

enclosure matching the architectural designs and colors of the principal building or facility; 

and 

 

(5)  New equipment cabinets are subject to the underlying zoning setbacks.  

 

Sec. 22-27-9.4.  Non-concealed antenna attachments.  

 

Non-concealed attachments shall only be allowed on electrical transmission support facilities and 

as light stanchions subject to approval by the Department of Planning and Community 

Development and the utility company and subject to the following: 

 

(1) The top of the attached antenna shall not be more than twenty (20) feet above the existing or 

proposed building or facility; and 

  

(2)  New equipment cabinets are subject to the underlying zoning setbacks.  

 

Sec.22-27-9.5. Colocation, colocation modifications, antenna element replacements of different 

size, weight or frequency utilization, or combining antenna. 

 

(1) A colocated or combined antenna or antenna array shall not exceed the maximum height 

prescribed in the Special Use Permit (if applicable) or increase the height of an existing 

facility by more than twenty (20) feet and shall not affect any antenna support facility 

lighting;  

  

(2) New antenna mounts shall be flush-mounted onto existing facilities, unless it is demonstrated 

through RF propagation analysis that flush-mounted antennas will not meet the network 

objectives of the desired coverage area;  

 

(3) The new equipment cabinet shall be subject to the setbacks of the underlying zoning district. 

If the colocation or combined antenna is located on a nonconforming building or facility, 

then the existing permitted nonconforming setback(s) shall prevail; and  

 

(4) Equipment cabinets shall be located within the existing equipment compound.  If the existing 

equipment compound is not sized adequately to accommodate the new proposed ground 

equipment, then a revised site plan of the original TASF site shall be submitted addressing 

the overall ground space for said TASF. 

  

Sec. 22-27-9.6.  Replacement antenna support facility.  

 

(1) Height: The height of a replacement antenna support facility shall equal the height of the 

facility being replaced.  If the replacement TASF exceeds this threshold then it will be 

reclassified as a mitigation facility.   

 

(2) Setbacks: A new TASF approved for replacement of an existing TASF shall not be required 

to meet new setback standards so long as the new TASF and its equipment compound are no 

closer to any property lines or dwelling units as the TASF and equipment compound being 

mitigated.  



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 19 

 

 

(3) Breakpoint technology: A newly replaced monopole antenna support facility shall use 

breakpoint technology in the design of the replacement facility; and  

 

(4) Buffers: At the time of replacement, the antenna support facility equipment compound shall 

be brought into compliance with any applicable buffer requirements; and  

 

Sec. 22-27-9.7.  Mitigation antenna support facility. 

 

Mitigation shall accomplish a minimum of one of the following: 1) reduce the number of TASFs; 

or 2) reduce the number of nonconforming TASFs; or 3) replace an existing TASF with a new 

TASF to improve network functionality resulting in compliance with this Article.  Mitigation is 

subject to the following: 

 

(1) Height: TASF approved for mitigation shall not exceed one hundred and twenty (120%) 

percent of the height of the tallest TASF that is being mitigated.  (For example a 100’ 

existing TASF could be rebuilt at 120’).  Mitigated SUPS require a SUP amendment;  

 

(2) Setbacks: A new TASF approved for mitigation of an existing TASF shall not be required to 

meet new setback standards so long as the new TASF and its equipment compound are no 

closer to any property lines or dwelling units as the TASF and equipment compound being 

mitigated. (For example, if a new TASF is replacing an old one, the new one is allowed to 

have the same setbacks as the TASF being removed, even if the old one had nonconforming 

setbacks.) The intent is to encourage the mitigation process, not penalize the TASF owner for 

the change out of the old facility;  

 

(3) Breakpoint technology: A newly mitigated monopole antenna support facility shall use 

breakpoint technology in the design of the replacement facility.  Certification by a registered 

professional engineer licensed by the Commonwealth of Virginia of the breakpoint design 

and the design’s fall radius must be provided together with the other information required 

herein from an applicant. 

 

(4) Buffers: At the time of mitigation, the TASF equipment compound shall be brought into 

compliance with any applicable buffer requirements;  

 

(5) Visibility: Mitigated TASFs shall be configured and located in a manner that minimizes 

adverse effects on the landscape and adjacent properties, with specific design considerations 

as to height, scale, color, texture, and architectural design of the buildings on the same and 

adjacent zoned lots; and  

  

(6)  If the mitigation includes the removal of an existing TASF, then that facility, excluding the 

antenna support facility foundation, shall be removed within ninety (90) days of the 

construction of the new TASF. 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 20 

 

Sec. 22-27-9.8.  New telecommunication antenna support facility. 

 

All new TASFs shall meet the following requirements: 

 

(1) No new TASF shall be permitted unless the applicant demonstrates that no existing TASF 

can accommodate the applicant’s proposed use; or that use of such existing TASF would 

prohibit personal wireless services in the geographic search area to be served by the proposed 

TASF.  

 

(2) Setbacks: New freestanding TASFs and equipment compounds shall be subject to the 

setbacks described below:  

 

(a)  If the TASF has been constructed using breakpoint design technology (see Section 22-

27-6. Definitions.), the minimum setback distance shall be equal to 110 percent of the 

distance from the top of the facility to the breakpoint level of the facility, or the minimum 

side and rear yard requirements, whichever is greater. Certification by a registered 

professional engineer licensed by the State of Virginia of the breakpoint design and the 

design’s fall radius must be provided together with the other information required herein 

from an applicant. 

   

(b) Concealed TASFs in residential districts not constructed using breakpoint design 

technology; the minimum setback distance shall be equal to the height of the proposed 

TASF from all existing structures. 

 

(c) All other non-broadcast TASFs not constructed using breakpoint design technology; the 

minimum setback distance shall be equal to the height of the proposed TASF from all 

property lines. 

 

(3) Equipment Compound:  The fenced-in compounds shall not be used for the storage of any 

excess equipment or hazardous materials. No outdoor storage yards shall be allowed in a 

TASF equipment compound, and the compound shall not be used as habitable space.  

 

(4) Equipment cabinets: Cabinets shall not be visible from pedestrian views. Cabinets may be 

provided within the principal building, behind a screen on a rooftop, or on the ground within 

the fenced-in and screened equipment compound.   

 

(5) Fencing: All equipment compounds shall be enclosed with an opaque fence. Alternative 

equivalent screening may be approved through the site plan approval process described in 

“Buffers” below. 

 

(6)  Buffers shall be provided as described in Article 24 of this ordinance. 

 

(7) Signage: Commercial messages shall not be displayed on any antenna support facility.      

Noncommercial signage shall be subject to the following: 

 

(a) The only signage that is permitted upon a TASF, equipment cabinets, or fence shall be 

informational, and for the purpose of identifying the TASF (by the FCC ASR registration 

number), as well as the party responsible for the operation and maintenance of the 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 21 

 

facility; i.e. the address and telephone number, security or safety signs, and property 

manager signs (if applicable). 

 

(b)  Identification signage shall be provided at all TASFs. 

  

(c)  If more than two hundred twenty (220) volts are necessary for the operation of the facility 

and is utilized within the equipment compound or on the TASF, signs located every 

twenty (20) feet and attached to the fence or wall shall display in large, bold, high 

contrast letters (minimum height of each letter four (4) inches) the following: “HIGH 

VOLTAGE - DANGER.” 

 

(8) Lighting: Lighting on TASF shall not exceed the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 

minimum standards.  Any lighting required by the FAA must be of the minimum intensity 

and number of flashes per minute (i.e., the longest duration between flashes) allowable by the 

FAA. Dual lighting standards are required and strobe light standards are prohibited unless 

required by the FAA. The lights shall be oriented so as not to project directly onto 

surrounding property, consistent with FAA requirements. 

 

(9) Balloon Test:   
 

 (a) The applicant shall arrange to raise a balloon of a color or material that provides 

maximum visibility and no less than three feet in diameter, at the maximum height of 

the proposed facility and within 50 horizontal feet of the center of the proposed 

TASF.   
 

 (b) The applicant shall inform in writing the zoning administrator, abutting property 

owners, elected Board of Supervisor, and appointed Planning Commissioners of the 

district of the date and times of the test at least 14 days in advance. 
 

 (c) The applicant shall request in writing permission from the abutting property owners to 

access their property during the balloon test to take pictures of the balloon and to 

evaluate the visual impact of the proposed tower on their property. 
 

 (d) The date, time and location of the balloon test shall be advertised in a locally 

distributed paper by the applicant at least seven but no more than 14 days in advance 

of the test date. The advertisement shall also include an alternate inclement weather 

date for the balloon test. 
 

 (e) Signage similar to rezoning signage shall be posted on the property to identify the 

location on the property where the balloon is to be launched.  This signage shall be 

posted by the applicant a minimum of seventy-two hours prior to the balloon test.  If 

unsuitable weather conditions prevail on the date of the balloon test then cancellation 

of the test shall be clearly noted on the signage. 
 

 (f) The balloon shall be flown for at least four consecutive hours during daylight hours on 

the date chosen.  
 

 (g) The applicant shall record the weather during the balloon test.  If the wind during the 

balloon test is above 20 miles per hour then the balloon test shall be postponed and 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 22 

 

moved to the alternate inclement weather date provided in the advertisement 

 

(10)  All TASFs up to 120 feet in height shall be engineered and constructed to accommodate no 

less than three (3) antenna arrays. All TASFs between 121 feet and 150 feet in height shall 

be engineered and constructed to accommodate no less than five (5) antenna arrays. All 

TASFs taller than 151 feet in height shall be engineered and constructed to accommodate 

no fewer than six (6) antenna arrays.   

 

(11)  Grading shall be minimized and limited only to the area necessary for the new TASF and 

equipment compound, along with any necessary access easements or rights-of-way. 

 

(12)  Parking.  One parking space is required for each TASF development area. The space shall 

be provided within the leased area, or equipment compound or the development area as 

defined on the site plan.   

 

(13)  Emergency Generators shall be allowed at each TASF site. 

 

(14) Sounds.  No unusual sound emissions such as alarms, bells, buzzers, or the like are 

permitted. The sound level for emergency generators shall not exceed 70 db at the property 

limits and testing shall only be between 9 AM to 4 PM Monday through Friday.   

 

Sec. 22-27-9.8.A.  Additional development standards for concealed telecommunications antenna 

support facility. 

 

All new concealed antenna support facilities shall meet the following requirements: 

 

(1)  In residential districts, new concealed TASFs shall only be permitted on lots whose principal 

use is not single-family residential including but not limited to: schools; places of worship; 

and fire stations, parks, and other public property. 

 

(2)  Height:  

 

(a) Where permitted in residential districts the maximum height shall be 140’. 

 

(b) In all other districts the maximum height shall be limited to 199’.   

 

(3) Visibility:  New concealed TASFs shall be configured and located in a manner that shall 

minimize adverse effects including visual impacts on the landscape and adjacent properties.  

The applicant shall provide simulated photographic evidence of the proposed TASF and 

antenna appearance from any and all residential areas within 1,500-foot and vantage points 

approved by the zoning administrator or designee including the facility types the applicant 

has considered and the impact on adjacent properties including: 

 

(a) Overall height;  
 

(b) Configuration;  
 

(c) Physical location;  
 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 23 

 

(d) Mass and scale;  
 

(e) Materials and color;  
 

(f) Illumination;  
 

(g) Architectural design; and  
 

(h) New concealed freestanding TASFs shall be designed to match adjacent facilities and 

landscapes with specific design considerations such as architectural designs, height, 

scale, color, and texture. 

 

Sec. 22-27-9.8.B. Additional development standards for non-concealed telecommunications 

antenna support facility. 

 

(1) Height. 
 

It is intended that all new non-broadcasting TASFs, other than amateur radio towers, be 199’ 

or less in height.  However, should there be a demonstrated need for a TASF in excess of 

199’, under no circumstance shall any non-broadcast or non-emergency service facility 

exceed 250’ feet in height.  All new non-broadcast facilities shall be subject to the following 

additional requirements: 
 

(a) Propagation maps and corresponding data including but not limited to topographic and 

demographic variables for the intended service area shall be provided for review 

illustrating with detail that the service area and intercoupling hand-off will be sufficiently 

compromised to require an additional TASF for network deployment, which would not 

otherwise be required. 
 

(b) The TASF shall be designed to allow for a future reduction of elevation to no more than 

199’, or the replacement of the TASF with a monopole type facility at such time as the 

wireless network has developed to the point that such a reduction in height can be 

justified.   
 

(2) In the Agricultural, General, A-1 district, new non-broadcast facilities shall be setback a 

minimum 500’ from any single-family dwelling unit, either on the same zone lot or from all 

adjacent lots of record.   

 

(3) Freestanding non-concealed antenna support facilities shall be limited to monopole type 

antenna support facilities, unless the applicant demonstrates that such design is not feasible to 

accommodate the intended uses. 

 

Sec. 22-27-9.8.C.  Additional development standards for broadcast antenna support facility. 

 

(1) Height for broadcast facilities shall be evaluated on a case by case basis; the determination of 

height contained in the applicant's FCC Form 351/352 Construction Permit or application for 

Construction Permit and an FAA Determination of No Hazard (FAA Form 7460/2) shall be 

considered prima facie evidence of the antenna support facility height required for such 

broadcast facilities.    
 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 24 

 

(2) New broadcast facilities and anchors shall be setback a minimum of 500’ from any single-

family dwelling unit located on the same parcel or lot; and the antenna support structure (but 

not the anchors for a guyed structure) shall be setback a minimum of 1’ for every 1’ of 

antenna support facility height from all adjacent lots of record.   
 

(3) Except for AM broadcast facilities, cabinets shall not be visible from pedestrian views.  
 

(4) All broadcast antenna support facilities, AM antenna support facilities, and guy anchors shall 

each be surrounded with an anti-climbing fence compliant with applicable FCC regulations.  

 

Sec. 22-27-9.9.  Wireless broadband facility.  
 

(1) A Wireless Broadband Facility may be colocated in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 

22-37-13.8; and  
 

(2) A Wireless Broadband Facility proposed for a new physical site shall comply with the 

provisions of Sec. 22-27-8. hereinabove. 
 

Sec. 22-27-10.  Submittal requirements for all TASFs. 
 

(1) Completion of the “Telecommunications Facility Application”;  
 

(2) Application fee;  
 

(3) Two sets of site plans (drawn to scale) addressing all development standards specific to the 

proposed installation. 
 

(4) Compliance with siting hierarchy (Sec.22-27-7): A report and supporting technical data 

demonstrating that all antenna attachments and colocations including all potentially useable 

utility distribution antenna support facilities and other elevated facilities within the proposed 

service area, and alternative antenna configurations have been examined, and found 

unacceptable. The report shall include reasons existing facilities such as utility distribution 

and other elevated facilities are not acceptable alternatives to a new freestanding antenna 

support facility. The report regarding the adequacy of alternative existing facilities or the 

mitigation of existing facilities to meet the applicant’s need or the needs of service providers 

indicating that no existing TASF could accommodate the applicant’s proposed facility shall 

consist of any of the following:  
 

(a) No existing TASF located within the geographic area meet the applicant’s engineering 

requirements, and why; and  
  

(b) Existing TASFs are not of sufficient height to meet the applicant’s engineering 

requirements, and cannot be increased in height; and  
 

(c) Existing TASFs do not have sufficient structural integrity to support the applicant’s 

proposed telecommunications facilities and related equipment, and the existing facility 

cannot be sufficiently improved; and  
  

(d) Other limiting factors that render existing TASFs unsuitable. 

 

Sec. 22-27-10.1.  Additional submittal requirements for antenna element replacement.  
 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 25 

 

For any replacement of an existing antenna element on a TASF of comparable size, weight and 

frequency use, the applicant must, prior to making such modifications, submit the following: 
 

(1) A written statement setting forth the reasons for the modification. 
 

(2) A description of the proposed modifications to the antenna, including any proposed 

modifications to antenna element design, type and number including manufacturer’s model 

number of the existing and proposed antenna elements; as well as changes in the number 

and/or size of any feed lines, from the base of the equipment cabinet to such antenna 

elements.  

 

Sec. 22-27-10.2. Additional submittal requirements for attached antenna (concealed and non-

concealed); colocations; colocation modifications; antenna replacements of different size, weight 

or frequency, and antenna combining. 

 

(1) A written statement setting forth the reasons for the request. 

 

(2) A description of the proposed request, including any proposed modifications to antenna 

element design, type and number including manufacturer’s model number of the existing and 

proposed antenna elements; as well as changes in the number and/or size of any feed lines, 

from the base of the equipment cabinet to such antenna elements.  

 

 (3) A stamped or sealed structural analysis of the proposed antenna support facility prepared by 

a registered professional engineer licensed by the State of Virginia indicating the proposed 

and future loading capacity of the antenna support facility is compliant with EIA/TIA-222-G 

(as amended). 

 

(4) A signed statement from a qualified person, together with their qualifications, shall be 

included that warrants radio frequency emissions from the antenna array(s) comply with FCC 

standards relating to interference to other radio services. The statement shall also certify that 

both individually and cumulatively, and with any other facilities located on or immediately 

adjacent to the proposed facility, the replacement antenna complies with FCC standards 

relating to human exposure to RF energy. 

 

(5) A stamped or sealed structural analysis of the existing facility prepared by a registered 

professional engineer licensed by the State of Virginia indicating that the existing TASF as 

well as all existing and proposed appurtenances meets Virginia Building Code requirements 

(including wind and ice loading) for the antenna support facility. 

 

Sec. 22-27-10.3.  Additional submittal requirements for all freestanding telecommunication and 

broadcast antenna support facilities. 

 

(1) One original and two (2) copies of a survey of the property completed by a registered 

professional engineer, licensed in the State of Virginia showing all existing uses, facilities, 

and improvements. 

 

(2) Site development plan regulations as set forth in Article 23 of this ordinance. 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 26 

 

(3) Proof that a property and/or antenna support facility owner’s agent has appropriate 

authorization to act upon the owner’s behalf (if applicable).  A signed statement from a 

qualified person, together with their qualifications, shall be included that warrants radio 

frequency emissions from the antenna array(s) comply with FCC standards regarding 

interference to other radio services. The statement shall also certify that both individually and 

cumulatively, and with any other facilities located on or immediately adjacent to the 

proposed facility, the replacement antenna complies with FCC standards regarding human 

exposure to RF energy.   

 

(4) A stamped or sealed structural analysis of the proposed antenna support facility prepared by a 

registered professional engineer licensed by the State of Virginia indicating the proposed and 

future loading capacity of the antenna support facility is compliant with EIA/TIA-222-G (as 

amended). 

 

(5) A written statement by a registered professional engineer licensed by the State of Virginia 

specifying the design structural failure modes of the proposed facility, if applicable. 

 

(6) A pre-application conference will be required for any new broadcast facility.  

 

(7) Title report or American Land Title Association (A.L.T.A.) survey showing all easements on 

the subject property, together with a full legal description of the property. 

 

(8) Prior to issuance of a building permit, proof of FAA compliance with Subpart C of the 

Federal Aviation Regulations, Part 77, and “Objects Affecting Navigable Airspace,” if 

applicable. 

 

Sec. 22-27-10.3.A. Additional submittal requirements for non-broadcast TASFs. 

 

(1) Technical data included in the report shall include certification by a registered professional 

engineer licensed in the State of Virginia or other qualified professional, which qualifications 

shall be included, regarding service gaps or service expansions that are addressed by the 

proposed TASF, and accompanying maps and calculations demonstrating the need for the 

proposed TASF.  

 

(2) A map showing the geographic search ring. 

 

(3) The applicant shall provide a statement as to the potential visual and aesthetic impacts of the 

proposed TASF and equipment on all adjacent residential zoning districts. 

 

(4) Materials detailing the locations of existing TASFs to which the proposed TASF will be a 

handoff candidate; including latitude, longitude, and power levels of the proposed and 

existing antenna is required. 

 

(5) A radio frequency propagation plot indicating the coverage of existing TASFs, coverage 

prediction, and design radius, together with a certification from the applicant’s radio 

frequency (RF) engineer that the proposed facility’s coverage or capacity potential cannot be 

achieved by any higher ranked alternative such as a concealed facility, attached facility, 

replacement facility, colocation, or new TASF. NOTE: These documents are required to 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 27 

 

justify a facility and to determine if the proposed location is the only or best one in the 

designated geographic area of the proposed facility.  

 

(6) A stamped or sealed certification from a registered radio frequency engineer demonstrating 

compliance with Section 22-27-7 (Siting alternatives hierarchy). If a lower ranking 

alternative is proposed the certification must address why higher ranked options are not 

technically feasible, practical or justified given the location of the proposed 

telecommunications facility. 

 

Sec. 22-27-10.3.B. Additional submittal requirement for broadcast antenna support facilities. 

 

Technical data included in the report shall include the purpose of the proposed facility as 

described in the FCC Construction Permit Application.  

 

Sec. 22-27-11.  Approval processes 

 

Sec. 22-27-11.1  “By right” application 

 

(1) The zoning administrator or designee shall review the request, application, and submitted 

documents for compliance with all requirements of this Article. The County may, at its 

discretion, obtain additional technical assistance to review and assess the technical merits of 

the documents. 

 

(2) If the zoning administrator or designee determines the application and documentation meets 

all of the requirements of this Article, the County shall approve the application package and 

the applicant may proceed to request a building permit. 

 

(3) If the zoning administrator or designee determines the application and/or documentation fails 

to meet all the requirements of the Article, then the County shall provide written notification 

to the applicant as to the materials which need to be amended or supplied for review. The 

applicant shall provide to the County any requested materials for review. This process shall 

continue until the County has approved the application package, at which time the applicant 

may proceed to request a building permit. 

 

(4) If the zoning administrator or designee determines the application and documentation fails to 

meet the intent of this Article, the County may deny the request in writing.  

 

(5) Appeals from a decision made by the zoning administrator shall be to the Board of Zoning 

Appeals. 

 

 

Sec. 22-27-11.2.  Special Use Permit application  

 

The approval of a Special Use Permit shall be governed by the processes described in Section 

22-17-4. 

  



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 28 

 

Sec. 22-27-12.  Interference with public safety communications. 

 

In order to facilitate the regulation, placement, and construction of antenna, and to ensure that all 

parties are complying to the fullest extent possible with the rules, regulations, and/or guidelines 

of the FCC, each owner of an antenna, antenna array or applicant for a colocation shall agree in a 

written statement to the following:  

 

(1) Compliance with “Good Engineering Practices” as defined by the FCC in its rules and 

regulations. 

 

(2) Compliance with FCC regulations regarding susceptibility to radio frequency interference, 

frequency coordination requirements, general technical standards for power, antenna, 

bandwidth limitations, frequency stability, transmitter measurements, operating 

requirements, and any and all other federal statutory and regulatory requirements relating to 

radio frequency interference (RFI).  

 

(3) In the case of an application for colocated telecommunications facilities, the applicant, 

together with the owner of the subject site, shall use their best efforts to provide a composite 

analysis of all users of the site to determine that the applicant’s proposed facilities will not 

cause radio frequency interference with the County’s public safety telecommunications 

equipment and will implement appropriate technical measures, as described in antenna 

element replacements, to attempt to prevent such interference. 

 

(4) Whenever the County has encountered radio frequency interference with its public safety 

telecommunications equipment, and it believes that such interference has been or is being 

caused by one or more antenna arrays, the following steps shall be taken: 

 

(a) The County shall provide notification to all wireless service providers operating in the 

County of possible interference with the public safety telecommunications equipment, 

and upon such notifications, the owners shall use their best efforts to cooperate and 

coordinate with the County  and among themselves to investigate and mitigate the 

interference, if any, utilizing the procedures set forth in the joint wireless industry-public 

safety “Best Practices Guide,” released by the FCC in February 2001, including the 

“Good Engineering Practices,” as may be amended or revised by the FCC from time to 

time. 

 

(b) If any equipment owner fails to cooperate with the County in complying with the owner’s 

obligations under this section or if the FCC makes a determination of radio frequency 

interference with the County public safety telecommunications equipment, the owner 

who failed to cooperate and/or the owner of the equipment which caused the interference 

shall be responsible, upon FCC determination of radio frequency interference, for 

reimbursing the County for all costs associated with ascertaining and resolving the 

interference, including but not limited to any engineering studies obtained by the County 

to determine the source of the interference. For the purposes of this subsection, failure to 

cooperate shall include failure to initiate any response or action as described in the “Best 

Practices Guide” within twenty-four (24) hours of County’s notification. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 29 

 

 

Sec. 22-27-13.  Publicly-owned property.  

 

(1) Pursuant to applicable law, the County  may contract with a third party to administer 

publicly-owned sites for purposes of developing the sites as part of a master 

telecommunications plan, consistent with the terms of this Article. Except as specifically 

provided herein, the terms of this Article, and the requirements established thereby, shall be 

applicable to all TASFs to be developed or collocated on County-owned sites. 

 

(2) If an applicant requests a permit to develop a site on County-owned property, the permit 

granted hereunder shall not become effective until the applicant and the County  have 

executed a written agreement setting forth the particular terms and provisions under which 

the permit to occupy and use the public lands of the jurisdiction will be granted, and no 

permit granted under this section shall convey any right, privilege, permit, or franchise to 

occupy or use the publicly-owned sites of the County for delivery of telecommunications 

services or any other purpose except as provided in such agreement. 

 

Sec. 22-27-14.  Fees for Supplemental Review   

 

Where the County deems it appropriate because of the complexity of the methodology or 

analysis required to review an application for a wireless communication facility, the county may 

require the applicant to pay for a technical review by a third party expert, selected by the County, 

the costs of which $4,000.00 shall be borne by the applicant, and be in addition to other 

applicable fees.  Site plan review for antenna element replacements only may be reduced to 

$1,800 provided the applicant meets all the requirements for an antenna element replacement.  If 

however, during the antenna element replacement site review it is determined the request does 

not meet the definition of an antenna element replacement, then review of the application will 

cease until the correct fee and correct plans are submitted.   Further, if additional information is 

needed to evaluate the applicant’s request, the applicant, shall make such additional information 

available as the County might reasonably request. 

 

Sec. 22-27-15. Height, setback and other dimensional regulations 

 

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this ordinance with respect to public safety services 

facilities or with respect to the provisions of any existing special use permit, the provisions of 

this Article shall control as the maximum permitted height, minimum setback and any other 

dimensional requirements for any TASF. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 30 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 31 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 32 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 33 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 34 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 35 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 36 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 37 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 38 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, September 21
st
, 2011 

Page 39 

 

 





October 6, 2011 

 

Alyson Sappington 

District Manager 

Thomas Jefferson Soil & Water Conservation District 

706G Forest Street 

Charlottesville VA 22903 

 

Dear Alyson: 

 

This letter is to express our support for the efforts of the Thomas Jefferson Soil 

& Water Conservation District (in cooperation with the Urban Committee of the 

Virginia Association of Soil and Water Conservation Districts) to initiate the 

development of an Urban-Residential BMP Cost Share & Outreach Program. 

 

The Chesapeake Bay TMDL initiative will require the implementation of 

conservation practices across all land uses.  While stormwater management 

regulations help to achieve conservation on newly developed land, and the 

Agricultural Cost Share Program helps to achieve conservation on farmland, 

achieving pollution load reductions on existing residential properties is much 

more challenging.  Creation of a cost share program for residential-scale best 

management practices will not only provide an incentive for property owners to 

implement practices, but more importantly, it will increase the level of 

knowledge in the community about what property owners can do to help 

Fluvanna County meet pollution reduction targets of the Chesapeake Bay 

TMDL initiative. 

 

Fluvanna County will designate an appropriate staff member to work with you, 

as time permits, to assist with outreach and to ensure the final program is 

consistent with our programs, policies, and plans for pollution reduction. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Jay Scudder, 

County Administrator 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 

John Y. Gooch, Chairman 
Palmyra District 

 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice Chair 
Columbia  District 

 

Donald W. Weaver 
Cunningham District 

 

Mozell H. Booker 
Fork Union  District 

 
Joseph C. Chesser 

Rivanna District 

 
Chris Fairchild 

Rivanna  District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 STAFF 

 
Jay Scudder 

County Administrator 

jscudder@co.fluvanna.va.us 
 

 

Mary L. Weaver 
Clerk to the Board 

mweaver@co.fluvanna.va.us 

 
  

 

 

 

P.O. Box 540 

Palmyra, VA 22963 
 

 (434) 591-1910 

 FAX (434) 591-1911 

www.co.fluvanna.va.us 
“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  

2

Attachment A

mailto:mweaver@co.fluvanna.va.us


__________“To exercise leadership in promoting natural resource protection”___________ 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

September 26, 2011 

John Y. Gooch, Chairman 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
P.O. Box 540 
Palmyra, Virginia 22963 

Dear Mr. Gooch: 

In cooperation with the Urban Committee of the Virginia Association of Soil & Water Conservation 
Districts (VASWCD), the Thomas Jefferson Soil & Water Conservation District (TJSWCD) is working to initiate the 
development of an urban/residential cost share program to assist property owners with the implementation of 
residential-scale “best management practices” (BMPs).  As you may be aware, Soil and Water Conservation 
Districts statewide have successfully administered and implemented an agricultural cost share program for nearly 
30 years.   

The Chesapeake Bay TMDL initiative will require the implementation of conservation practices across all 
land uses.  While stormwater management regulations help to achieve conservation on newly developed land, 
and the Agricultural Cost Share Program helps to achieve conservation on farmland, achieving pollution load 
reductions on existing residential properties is much more challenging.  Creation of a cost share program for 
residential-scale BMPs will not only provide an incentive for property owners to implement practices, but more 
importantly, it will increase the level of knowledge in the community about what property owners can do to help 
localities meet pollution reduction targets of the Chesapeake Bay TMDL initiative. Practices that will be 
encouraged include conversion of lawns to native plants, planting of riparian buffers, soil testing/nutrient 
management, pet waste management, rainwater harvesting, rain gardens, drainage improvements, and reduction 
of impervious surfaces. 

The VASWCD Urban Committee’s plan consists of three phases: 1) the development of proposed policies 
and guidelines for an Urban-Residential Cost Share & Outreach Program, 2) the implementation of a pilot project 
among four participating SWCDs (including the TJSWCD), and 3) the development of a strategy to finance a 
statewide Urban-Residential Cost Share & Outreach Program.  We have recently learned that Phase I of this plan 
has been approved for funding. 

The Thomas Jefferson SWCD is requesting the support of our five localities and other organizations to 
ensure the successful implementation of all phases of this plan.  We hope that you will designate a staff member 
to help us with outreach and to attend our planning meetings to ensure that the resulting program will be 
consistent with Fluvanna County’s programs, policies and plans.    

A letter to me expressing your support for this plan would be most appreciated! Copies of the letter will 
be submitted with subsequent funding requests as we solicit support for the program during the coming year. I 
have enclosed a template for such a letter that you are welcome to use, or you may provide an original letter as 
you see fit. Thank you, and please call me if you have questions. 

Regards, 

 
Alyson Sappington 
District Manager 
 
Cc. (via email) William (Jay) P. Scudder, County Administrator 

Thomas Jefferson Soil and Water Conservation District 
706G Forest Street, Charlottesville, VA  22903 
Tel: (434) 975-0224   Fax: (434) 975-1367 
Web Page: www.tjswcd.org 
 
Louisa Office:   39 Industrial Dr, Louisa, VA  23093 
  Phone: 540-967-5940     Fax:  540-967-2557 
 

3

Attachment B

mailto:jscudder@co.fluvanna.va.us
http://www.tjswcd.org/


















































































Annual Report  FY10-11

Celebrati ng 35 years of serving Central Virginia!



JAUNT’S VISION 
Central Virginians get where they need to go safely, effi  ciently and 
aff ordably while respecti ng the environment.  

JAUNT’S MISSION 
JAUNT safely, courteously and promptly provides public and 
specialized services to meet community mobility needs.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  FY10 11
Juandiego Wade, President, Albemarle
Katherine Pickett , Vice President, Charlott esville
Robert Burke, Secretary, Albemarle
Bill Watt erson, Treasurer, Charlott esville
Cliff ord Buys, Albemarle
Karl Carter, Buckingham
Ray East, Albemarle
David Feisner, Fluvanna
Willie Gentry, Louisa 
Ray Heron, Charlott esville
Janice Jackson, Nelson
Philip Jones, Charlott esville
Catherine Palmer, Fluvanna
P.T. Spencer, Louisa



FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
AND THE PRESIDENT 
We had another year of record-breaking ridership, a super safety 
record, new services and improvements to our already stellar on-
ti me performance.  Public ridership in each of our six jurisdicti ons 
increased as more people took advantage of the wonderful service 
that we provide.  

On the downside, fuel prices rose beyond our predicti ons and other 
expenses rose despite our fl at budget, presenti ng some signifi cant 
fi nancial challenges.   

One of the highlights of the year was the new shopping service for 
seniors throughout Planning District Ten that was funded by a state 
grant as well as matching funds from JABA.  We were also delighted 
to have one of our drivers win the state Roadeo and to achieve 
our goal of raising $3500 for JAUNT Friends to celebrate our 35th 
Anniversary.

The local, state and federal governments are our partners in this 
remarkable growth and we are very grateful for their support.  
Despite the tough economy, we’ve been able to increase services 
thanks to their dedicati on to supporti ng transit.  We added a 
new partner this year with the Rappahannock-Rapidan Regional 
Commission providing funding for service for medical trips from 
Culpeper and Madison and enjoyed increased support from 
Wintergreen to help their employees get to work.

We’d love to see you on the bus so you can see just how important 
our services are, so give us a call!

Juan Wade, President

Donna Shaunesey, 

                 Executi ve Director

Our nonprofi t, JAUNT 
Friends, distributed 
over 980 ti ckets to 

people in need!



JAUNT IN BRIEF
JAUNT, Inc. is a regional transportati on system providing service 
to Charlott esville, Albemarle, Louisa, Nelson, Fluvanna and 
Buckingham. The 69 vehicle fl eet carries the general public, agency 
clients, senior citi zens and people with disabiliti es throughout 
Central Virginia; most of the fl eet is lift -equipped. Organized in 1975, 
JAUNT maintains an exemplary record of safety, cost effi  ciency, and 
high quality service, and is recognized both statewide and nati onally 
for its performance record. In FY11 we provided over 300,000 trips 
to work, agency programs, doctors’ offi  ces, and retail businesses. 
JAUNT is owned by the local governments that it serves and uses 
federal, state, and local funding to supplement fares and agency 
payments.

Charlott esville

Albemarle

Nelson

Buckingham

Fluvanna

Louisa



HIGHLIGHTS
Charlott esville 
Ridership increased 6%, with more people using JAUNT to get to grocery 
stores, school and other non-medical desti nati ons.  The route from 
Charlott esville to Wintergreen saw a major increase in ridership, too.

Albemarle 
Public ridership increased 1%, led by a 15% increase in riders on the 
Scott sville route.

Nelson 
The Lovingston commuter route got so popular (a 23% increase) that 
we had to add a bigger vehicle; overall public ridership rose 16% and 
we were excited to start a once-a-month service to help folks get to the 
Food Pantry with a grant from the Nelson Community Foundati on.

Fluvanna 
Overall ridership increased 10%, led by a 58% increase in midday route 
ridership, followed closely by an increase of 29% on the Fluvanna 
Express.  We did see a decline in commuter route ridership as a result of 
fare increases.

Louisa 
Thanks to an infusion of funds from the Board of Supervisors, we were 
able to add a second bus to the overcrowded midday route, leading 
to a 28% increase in ridership and signifi cantly shorter ride ti mes.  
Intracounty service also increased 11%, for an overall increase in public 
service of 12%.

Buckingham 
We were very grateful to receive mid-year supplementary funding to 
allow us to conti nue the popular later commuter route year-round, 
leading to a 16% increase in ridership.  The earlier commuter route also 
increased 6%.

318,814 trips –
highest ever!



JAUNT achieved a
Net Promoter Score 

of 70% based on
our fall passenger 

survey.

TOTAL ANNUAL RIDERSHIP 

FY10 11 RIDERSHIP    

350,000

300,000

250,000

200,000

150,000

100,000

50,000

0
1975 1980 1985 1990 1995 2000 2005 2011  

“ Great, courteous, 
kind, caring service!”

from 2010
 Passenger Survey

TRIP CATEGORIES

Medical  81,128

Elderly and Disabled 98,122

Children & Youth 7,872

Senior Meal Programs 19,021

Rural Routes  93,819

Other  18,852

TOTAL  318,814

PASSENGER ORIGIN

Charlott esville 131,508

Albemarle 100,516

Nelson 16,068

Fluvanna 21,676

Louisa 32,909

Buckingham 12,856

Other 3,281

TOTAL 318,814          



EXPENSES 

Administrati on  $997,803

Operati ons $4,091,961

Special Projects $118,088

TOTAL $5,207,852

REVENUE

Local $2,025,873

State $673,964

Federal $1,470,517

Agency $459,228

Fares $465,600

TOTAL $5,095,182

Operati ons 79%

Special 
Projects 2% Administrati on 19%

Agency 9%

Fares 9%

State 
13%

Federal 
29%

Local 40%

OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY
(unaudited fi gures)



This document was printed on recycled paper.



 

TAB J 

 

Central Virginia Regional Jail 

Expansion Update 

 

Handout will be available night 

of meeting 

 

 



MOTION:  I move to authorize the County Administrator to execute a contract, after County 

Attorney approval as to form, with Timmons Group for Geographic Information System (GIS) 

support services in an amount not to exceed current service costs, and paid from approved 

department budgets at existing funding levels.   

    
 

AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS October 5, 2011 

 

SUBJECT:  GIS Support Services; execution of contract for 
 

TIMING:  Needs action to procure consulting services and have a new site available in January 

2012.   
 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS: This action will allow Fluvanna County to procure Timmons Group 

as the County’s GIS consultant to update, enhance, and maintain the County’s webGIS site. 
 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None.  This contract will be executed within existing funding levels 

for GIS professional services.   

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  The County has been under contract with MSAG Data Consultants, 

Inc. since 2004 for the provision of online GIS services and the development of the County’s 

website.  MSAG has been the standard bearer for such services in Virginia, particularly for rural 

localities.  They are still prominent in their provision of E-911 professional services.   
 

DISCUSSION:  Over the past several years, the service level provided by MSAG has diminished 

for various reasons including staffing reductions and turnover.  The website “goes down” about 

once per week until Planning staff emails MSAG staff to reboot the site.  Planning and 

Communications Center staff met with MSAG officials in September 2010 to discuss ongoing 

concerns and their customer service support has not improved since that time.  When prompted, 

MSAG has been very responsive, but it should not be incumbent upon County staff to 

continually follow-up with a consultant who has a very limited and well defined contract for 

services.   

 

In August 2011, Planning staff, Commission of Revenue staff, and the IT Director met with a 

Timmons Group representative to demonstrate a GIS technology and series of websites used by a 

significant number of localities including Appomattox, Campbell, Highland, Louisa, Nelson, 

Page, Fairfax, and Fredericksburg, among others.  This system is based on the latest GIS 

platform as opposed to an antiquated CAD-based platform which we are now on.  This inhibits 

significant improvements to our site for future upgrades (without costly programming).  The new 

site would be tailor made for Fluvanna County, but from an “out of the box” product that is well 

tested and easy to use.   

 

The main reasons for recommending a switch in GIS consultants is service quality and 

reliability.  Fluvanna County’s annual update from MSAG on the year’s parcel updates occurs 

each January for the previous year.  Switching sites in January would make for a smooth and 

seamless transition for the County in receiving this critical annual update and would make the 

following year’s update equally as smooth.  If the County can approve a contract with Timmons 

Group now, then the development of a new site can meet this timeframe. 

1





 

Timmons Group Letter of Agreement – Page 1 

 
 

LETTER OF AGREEMENT
 

Client Fluvanna County, Virginia 

 
Project 
Name 

Fluvanna Web LoGIStics  

Contact Darren Coffey 
Director of Planning & Community 
Development 
540.591.1910 
dcoffey@co.fluvanna.va.us 
 

PIC Russell Minich 
804.200.6966 
russell.minich@timmons.com 
 

Address P.O. Box 540 
Palmyra, VA 22963 

PM Chad Phillips 
804.200.6968 
chad.phillips@timmons.com 

 
 
Thank you for allowing Timmons Group to provide professional services for your project. Timmons Group will 
provide the requested services in compliance with established industry standards, while being mindful of the 
costs to the client.  This agreement is an extension of the Fairfax County, VA contract for IT Services and 
Expert Assistance, contract # RQ07-886819-42. 
 

SCOPE OF WORK & SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 
 

Timmons Group will provide the services outlined in the Scope of Services, Attachment A. Services will be 
provide on a Fixed Fee basis as shown in Attachment A and in accordance with the project schedule to be 
mutually agreed upon by Timmons Group and Fluvanna County.  Timmons Group will invoice the County on a 
monthly basis for services provided during the term of the contract. 
 
Services will be provided in a timely and efficient manner. Timmons Group will keep you informed of the job 
status and any necessary modifications/addendums. Acknowledgement and acceptance of this Letter of 
Agreement by October 20th, 2011, constitutes SOW and fee schedule acceptance by the County and Timmons 
Group. 
 
The attached SOW generally defines the work to be performed in support of the defined Project. It is 
understood by Timmons Group and the County that a variety of modifications / addendums / revisions to the 
defined SOW may be required, at various times during the performance of the SOW, to achieve desired 
Project results. Such modifications / addendums / revisions will be agreed to by both Timmons Group and the 
client and incorporated into the SOW. Significant alterations / deviations from the SOW will be incorporated by 
written addendum. 
 
Timmons Group shall submit invoices on a monthly basis for services provided during the previous month in 
order for those invoices to be processed within a thirty-day period. Timmons Group reserves the right to stop 
work on any client account that becomes sixty (60) days past due. 
 
In the event of non-payment by Client, Timmons Group shall be entitled to recover all attorneys’ fees related to 
the collection of all amounts due, whether at the trial or appellate level, in an amount of not less than 25% of 

3

Attachment 1

mailto:hcboard@htcnet.org
mailto:russell.minich@timmons.com
mailto:chad.phillips@timmons.com


 

Timmons Group Letter of Agreement – Page 2 

the total indebtedness at the time suit is commenced. The County also agrees that it shall be liable for the 
costs of litigation, including court costs, court reporter expenses, and expert witness fees. 
 
 
 
Timmons Group will proceed upon receipt of this signed agreement.  
 
 
 
Acknowledged & Accepted: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
__________________________________             __________________________________ 
Fluvanna County         DATE                 Timmons Group                            DATE 
 
 

4



Attachment A  2011 
 

Fluvanna County, VA Web LoGIStics  3 

 

County of Fluvanna, Virginia 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Web LoGIStics Development Project 
 

Contract Attachment A 
Project Scope and Fee 

9/26/11 
  

5



Attachment A  2011 
 

Fluvanna County, VA Web LoGIStics  4 

Scope of Services 
Timmons Group will develop and host Web LoGIStics for the County of Fluvanna, Virginia.  Web LoGIStics for Fluvanna 
will be built on ArcGIS Server 10, Flex 4.   
Specific functionality that will be included in the website is highlighted below: 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  

Appearance Screenshot Description 

Splash Page 
Disclaimer  

When initially trying to access the site, the user will first 
encounter a splash page with a parcel boundary 
disclaimer.  The client will provide the text for the 
disclaimer.  Users will have to accept the disclaimer 
before having full access to the map. 

Splash Graphic  

The client may provide a logo to display on the initial 
page load.   

Map Graphic Scale 
Display  

Map displays will include a scale bar.  The client will 
provide scale bar specifications based on candidate 
styles available through ESRI technologies. 

Map Graphic North 
Arrow Display  

Map displays will include a north arrow.  The client will 
provide north arrow specifications based on candidate 
styles available through ESRI technologies. 

Default Settings Description 

Initial Extent of Map 
When the page is initially accessed by the user, the set extent/scale of the map will 
be defined by the client. 

Layers On/Off 
When the page is initially accessed by the user, the layers that are displaying on the 
map will be defined by the client. 

Print Defaults - Page Orientation - 
Portrait/Landscape 

When the print option is initially accessed by the user, the default page orientation 
setting will be defined by the client. 

6



Attachment A  2011 
 

Fluvanna County, VA Web LoGIStics  5 

Map Tools Screenshot Description 

Zoom In 

 

Users will be provided a button on the user 
interface to allow for zooming in on the map.  
Users will be able to zoom in using one of two 
methods.  The user can either perform a single 
left-mouse click operation on the map which will 
re-center the map at the location of the user's 
click and zoom in by a factor of 2 or left-drag a 
box to define a new map extent.  Upon 
releasing the mouse, the map will refresh to the 
defined box extent.   

Zoom Out 

 

The user can either perform a single left-mouse 
click operation on the map which will re-center 
the map at the location of the user's click and 
zoom out by a factor of 2 or left-drag a box to 
define the new map extent.  The new map 
extent will be calculated as a proportion of the 
user-defined box and the current map extent.  
The larger the rectangle drawn, the less 
zoomed out the new map will be. 

Zoom Full Extent 
 

Users will be provided a button on the user 
interface to allow zoom to the full extent of the 
map.  The full extent of the map is defined by 
the data contained in the map.   

Pan 

 

Users will be provided a button on the user 
interface to allow for panning the map.  The pan 
button, once selected, will allow the user to 
either single left click on the map to re-center 
the map to that point or left mouse drag to 
move the entire map a certain direction.  The 
map will be refreshed to the new extent once 
the left mouse button is released. 

Tool Tips  

User will be provided with tool tips.  Tool tips 
are explanations that appear for tool buttons 
when the user 'hovers' over the tool. 

Navigation - Zoom 
to Lat/Long  

Users will be provided an area to enter Lat and 
Long coordinates.  Once valid coordinates are 
entered, users will be able to zoom directly to 
the coordinate on the map. 

7



Attachment A  2011 
 

Fluvanna County, VA Web LoGIStics  6 

Selection - Select by 
Point   

Users will be provided a button on the user 
interface that will allow for point selections.  
Users will click once to select a feature against 
the active layer.  This tool will operate only 
against the active layer. 

Selection - Select by 
Polygon  

Users will be presented with a button on the 
user interface that allows polygon-based 
selections.  As a user creates inflection points, 
the map will display the polygon dynamically.  
The map will not be regenerated for each 
inflection point created.  The users will 
complete the polygon by double-clicking the 
map.  This tool will operate only against the 
Active Layers defined. 

Selection - Select by 
Rectangle  

Users will be presented with a button on the 
user interface that allows for the drawing of a 
"box" or "rectangle" that "touches" the features 
they want to select.  This tool will allow for 
feature selection by either clicking a single point 
or left-dragging the mouse to create a 
rectangle/box.  Selected features will be 
highlighted on the map.  If the user chooses to 
drag a box, this tool will dynamically show a 
preview of the selection area as the user 
drags/moves the mouse. 

Selection - Clear 
Selection  

Users will be provided a button on the user 
interface that allows for the "clearing" of 
selected features.  This tool will be valid after a 
selection has been made through one of the 
previously described tools (e.g., select by 
polygon).  When this button is pressed, it will 
clear all highlighting and results screen.  The 
map will refresh. 

8



Attachment A  2011 
 

Fluvanna County, VA Web LoGIStics  7 

Sketch - Sketch 
Point on Map  

Users will be provided a tool that allows adding 
point graphics to the map.  Once the tool has 
been selected, single left mouse clicks will 
overlay new point graphics as defined by the 
user. 

Sketch - Sketch Line 
on Map  

Users will be provided a tool that allows adding 
line graphics to the map.  Once the tool has 
been selected, a series of single left mouse 
clicks will draw a line as defined by the user.  A 
double click will complete the line sketch. 

Sketch - Sketch 
Polygon on Map  

Users will be provided a tool that allows adding 
polygon graphics to the map.  Once the tool 
has been selected, a series of single left mouse 
clicks will draw the boundaries of the polygon 
as defined by the user.  A double click will 
complete the polygon sketch. 

Sketch - Add Text to 
Map  

Users will be provided a tool that allows adding 
text label graphics to the map.  Once the tool 
has been selected, a single left mouse click will 
open a white text box for the user to type into.  
The text will be centered where the user makes 
the initial left mouse click. 

Sketch - Clear 
Sketches/Text  

Users will be provided a tool that allows 
clearing added sketches from the map. 

Analysis - 
Calculates Line 
Distance  

Users will be provided a button on the map that 
will allow for linear measurements.  As the user 
creates inflection points, the map display will 
reflect the last segment length and total line 
length dynamically.  A double click will complete 
the measurement.   

9



Attachment A  2011 
 

Fluvanna County, VA Web LoGIStics  8 

Analysis - 
Calculates Polygon 
Area  

Users will be provided a button on the map that 
will allow for area measurements.  As the user 
creates inflection points, the map display will 
reflect the last segment length, total perimeter 
and area dynamically.  A double click will 
complete the area measurement. 

Table of Content 
Control  

The map will have a table of content which 
displays all of the layers on the map.  From this 
table, layers may be turned on and off and 
active layers chosen.   

Overview Map  

The map will contain a smaller, overview map 
that displays a smaller scale view of the area 
surrounding the main map. 

Transparency  

Users will have the ability to make certain 
layers transparent.  Layers for transparency will 
be determined in agreement with the client. 

Scanned Images 

 Users will have access to scanned taxmap 
images that will be presented as a hyperlink in 
parcel information.  These taxmap images will 
be hosted by Timmons Group. 

10



Attachment A  2011 
 

Fluvanna County, VA Web LoGIStics  9 

Report  

A customized report will be created based on 
mock-ups provided by the client.  The reports 
will be tied to a parcel id, and must contain data 
that can be digitally joined to the existing parcel 
data set. 

 

Integration 
Tools 

Screenshot 
Description 

Google Street 
View 

 

Users will have access to Google Maps through the 
application.  For the given extent of the map, selecting the 
Google Maps hyperlink will open a new window displaying 
the extent in Google Maps. 

ArcGIS Online 
Services 

 
Users will have access to ArcGIS online services including 
Streetmap view and satellite imagery – this will require data 
to be displayed in WGS 84 or WGS Web Mercator. 

 

Print Settings Screenshot Description 

Printing  

Users will be presented with a print widget 
that will allow entering text for the title, 
description, and printed by section.  Page 
sizes and orientation are also available.   

11



Attachment A  2011 
 

Fluvanna County, VA Web LoGIStics  10 

Print to PDF  Users will have option to print to pdf. 

 
  

12



Attachment A  2011 
 

Fluvanna County, VA Web LoGIStics  11 

Parcel Search 
Settings 

Screenshot 
Description 

Search By Address  

Users will be provided a tool to search for 
parcels by address. The field(s) available to 
search by the user will be defined by the 
client. 

Search By Owner 
(lname / fname)  

Users will be provided a tool to search for 
parcels by the owner name.  The field(s) 
available to search by the user will be 
defined by the client. 

Search By Parcel ID  

Users will be provided a tool to search for 
parcels by the parcel identifier.  The field(s) 
available to search by the user will be 
defined by the client. 

 
  

13



Attachment A  2011 
 

Fluvanna County, VA Web LoGIStics  12 

Export Data  Description 

Export to Excel (Parcel 
data only)  

Users will be provided with an export tool.  
This tool will provide the option to export 
attribution from selected parcel or parcels to 
an Excel format.  The user will be notified of 
the path to retrieve the data. 

Export Mailing Labels to 
Excel (Parcel data only) 

 Users will be provided with an export tool.  
This tool will provide the option to export 
attribution from selected parcel or parcels to 
an Excel format.  The user will be notified of 
the path to retrieve the data. The mailing 
label data can then be imported to word. 

 
  

14



Attachment A  2011 
 

Fluvanna County, VA Web LoGIStics  13 

Query Options Screenshot Description 

Adjacent/Buffered 
Parcels  

Users will be provided with a tool to enable 
selection of adjoining parcels and selection 
of parcels buffered from a user-chosen 
distance. 

 

Caching Description 

1 Cached Service One data layer will be cached to provide better map drawing speed.  

 
 

Help  Screenshot  Description 

Help Videos 

 

 

Help icon on toolbar will take users to a selection of narrated help 
videos displaying how-to directions on how to pan a map, how to 
change the map background, how to search for parcels, how to 
use map layers, how to zoom in/out, and how to use the drawing 
tools. 

 

 

  

15



Attachment A  2011 
 

Fluvanna County, VA Web LoGIStics  14 

Hosting Agreement 
Below are the terms of hosting for Fluvanna County Web LoGIStics, whereas the CUSTOMER is the County of Fluvanna, 
and the CONSULTANT is Timmons Group. 

1. Hosting Services. Provided CUSTOMER is licensed to use CONSULTANT Software pursuant to an enforceable Software 
License Agreement between CONSULTANT and CUSTOMER, CONSULTANT will install and operate the host portion of the 
Software in CONSULTANT's Host Computer System.  
CONSULTANT will provide all equipment, software and services necessary for the operation and maintenance and support of the 
Host Computer System and the host portion of the Software. CONSULTANT may contract with third parties for all or part of such 
equipment, software and services. CONSULTANT reserves the right to change the configuration of the Host Computer System 
and the host portion of the Software and to change or delete such equipment or software at any time, but CONSULTANT shall 
make CUSTOMER's application compatible with such change or deletion without additional charge to CUSTOMER.  
CONSULTANT will provide bandwidth for communication between CUSTOMER and its web users involving the Software. 
CONSULTANT will back-up CUSTOMER's data on a weekly basis. CUSTOMER shall have access to and be permitted to use the 
Software via Internet facilities.  
The Hosting Computer System shall be used by CUSTOMER only for purposes relating to CUSTOMER's own use of the 
Software. CUSTOMER shall have no right to assign any of its rights under this Application Hosting Agreement. CONSULTANT will 
not be responsible for any delays resulting from circumstances beyond its control. CONSULTANT will take reasonable 
precautions to guard against unauthorized access to CUSTOMER's data that is used or collected by the Software. However, 
CONSULTANT assumes no responsibility that the Software will be used properly. 

2. CUSTOMER's Responsibilities. CUSTOMER is responsible for maintenance and installation of any common carrier equipment 
or communication Support related to the operation of the Software at the CUSTOMER's facilities and not furnished by 
CONSULTANT.  
CUSTOMER is also responsible for charges incurred for communication facilities at CUSTOMER's facilities, whether incurred by 
CUSTOMER or by CONSULTANT Support representatives while performing Support on the Software. 

3. Limit of Liability. CONSULTANT will not be responsible to CUSTOMER for loss of use of the Software or data or for any other 
liabilities arising from the hosting services outlined in this agreement.   

4. Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall commence January 2nd, 2012, and shall continue for three (3)  years. Thereafter, 
unless CUSTOMER notifies CONSULTANT in writing at least sixty (60) days in advance of each scheduled expiration date that 
CUSTOMER elects not to renew, this Application Hosting Agreement shall automatically renew for a period of twelve months. 
Notwithstanding the preceding,  

CONSULTANT may terminate by giving at least thirty (30) days written notice.  Application Hosting Agreement shall terminate 
immediately upon termination of the Software License Agreement. 

5. Fees. CUSTOMER agrees to pay those fees specified herein.  

CUSTOMER will be invoiced monthly. All invoices are due and payable in full within thirty (30) days. Invoices not paid when due 
will have a 1.5 percent per month interest charge or the highest lawful rate, whichever is less, assessed against the unpaid 
balance from the date of the invoice until the date of payment. CUSTOMER shall pay all costs involved in collecting its overdue 
accounts including reasonable attomeys' fees.   

All charges and rates are exclusive of all sales, use and like taxes. Such taxes are the responsibility of the CUSTOMER and will 
be billed to the CUSTOMER as a separate line item on each invoice. 

6. Control and Supervision. CUSTOMER is solely responsible for any liability arising out of or related to the web application. 
CUSTOMER agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless CONSULTANT, their employees, and agents from and against any 
and all liabilities, losses, damages, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and experts' fees associated with 
any claim or action against CONSULTANT related to or arising out of the web site. This indemnification will survive termination of 
this Application Hosting Agreement. 

7. Disclaimer of Warranty. There are no warranties, express or implied, including any warranty against infringement, with respect 
to the services or deliverables furnished under this agreement. Consultant disclaims any implied warranties. Consultant does not 
warrant the result of any services or deliverables nor that the services or deliverables will meet customer's requirements. 

8. Disclaimer of Warranty. CONSULTANT periodically annoucnes the End of Support Life (EOSL) for Software.  CONSULTANT 
will notifiy the CUSTOMER signatory or designee in wiriting or by electronic mail a minimum of Sixty (60) days prior to the 
Support discontinuance.  After the EOSL, telephone or web-based support limited to current available fixes will be available on 
commercially reasonable efforts, on a time and materials basis at prevailing rates. 

 

16



Attachment A  2011 
 

Fluvanna County, VA Web LoGIStics  15 

Project Fee 
This is a three year hosting and development contract that extends the cost of initial site development over a three year 
period.  The County will be billed on a monthly basis beginning when the site is publically deployed on Timmons Group 
production servers, and conclude at the end of 36 months.  Annual hosting rates beginning at year 4 will available at a 
rate of $6,200 annually. 

Tasks Fee 

Site Development, License and Hosting – Year 1 
 $9,250  

Site License and Hosting – Year 2 $9,250  

Site License and Hosting – Year 3 $9,250 

Total Project Fee $27,750  

 

Additional Services 
Additional GIS services not specifically described in scope of services can be procured under this contract upon mutual 
written agreement of the scope and price, using the rates shown in the table below. Timmons Group and the County can 
re-negotiate these rates on an annual basis. 
 

Additional Services T & M Rates 

Labor Category Hourly Rate 

Project Manager $157.50  

Senior Analyst $110.25  

Junior Analyst $68.25  

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

17



MOTION 1:  I move to enter into an agreement with the Town of Columbia to have the County 
Commissioner of Revenue collect and enforce Town taxation and instruct the County Administrator in 
cooperation with the County Attorney to prepare the required documents for consideration of the Board. 
 
MOTION 2: I move to enter into an agreement with the Town of Columbia to share a Planning Commission 
and instruct the County Administrator in cooperation with the county Attorney to draft an ordinance and 
initiate the process to enable this relationship. 
 
MOTION 3: I move to enter into an agreement with the Town of Columbia to share services offered by the 
County Planning and Community Development Department including enforcement of selected Town 
Ordinances and instruct the County Administrator and County Attorney to prepare the required documents 
for consideration of the Board. 
. 
AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS October 5, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  Columbia request for services 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Town of Columbia Task Force has recommended County assistance 
 
TIMING:  Routine. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: As detailed in the attached letter, the Town of Columbia has requested 
assistance. The complexity of the issues facing the Town will only be resolved with assistance from the 
County in partnership with the Town Council, Town citizens and other state and local agencies. The 
assistance requested will improve tax revenue, living conditions, and future planning for the Town. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  To be determined during development of agreements. The Town recognizes that 
under these agreements that it is typical for fees and expenses for planning services are retained by the 
County. At the July 29, 2011 meeting of the Columbia Task Force the prospect of legal action was raised 
as a potential outcome of code enforcement. Discussion ensued regarding how the costs of legal 
representation would be handled by the Town. Given the Town’s limited resources, it is likely the County 
Attorney or the Commonwealth’s Attorney’s Office would be asked to represent the Town in any legal 
action resulting from Code enforcement with the associated costs paid by the County or shared with the 
Town. At that same meeting, the Task Force recommended that as agreements are developed the Town 
should confirm that the state sales tax distributed based on school-aged children is transferred to the Town 
and that the Rolling Stock Tax for freight train and truck travel is apportioned to the Town as specified by 
the VA Code. 
 
DISCUSSION: Recommendations to date made by the Task Force are reflected in the following excerpt 
from the July 29, 2011 minutes: 
“The discussion culminated with the following recommendations: 

1. Request the Board of Supervisors (BOS) enter into an agreement to have the County 
Commissioner of Revenue collect and enforce Town taxation, including vehicle registration fees 
and collection of delinquent taxes. Town taxes would then be returned to the Town, minus an 
administrative fee. 

2. Request the Board of Supervisors enter into an agreement to share a Planning Commission by 
enacting a resolution and ordinance enabling this relationship, noting that typically fees and 
expenses for planning services are made payable to the County. These services would encompass 
development review, comprehensive plan drafting, and other planning activities. 

BOS 10_5_2011 p. 1





BOS 10_5_2011 p. 3



BOS 10_5_2011 p. 4





 1 
01JUNE2011  

 

DELTALERT 
SOFTWARE LICENSE, SUPPORT AND SOLUTION AGREEMENT 

 
 This Agreement is considered executed and made and entered into as of the last date 
of signature by the parties to this Agreement (the “Effective Date”) and is by and between 
Jacosoft, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, with principal offices located at 5300 
Memorial Drive, Suite 940, Houston, Texas 77007 (hereinafter referred to as “Jacosoft”) and 
Fluvanna County, Virginia, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia 
(hereinafter referred to as “LICENSEE”) which is the signatory hereto and identified as the 
Licensee herein. 
 
 Section 1.  Definitions.  As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have 
the meanings set forth below: 
 

(a) “Agreement” means this Software License, Support and Solution Agreement. 
 

(b) “Licensed Software” means the software configuration including components 
and modules described on Exhibit B and all updates, revisions and 
enhancements thereto made by Jacosoft during the Term of this Agreement, as 
described in Section 6. 

 
(c) “Maintenance and Support” means the maintenance and support performed by 

Jacosoft to the Licensed Software as described in the attached Exhibit C. 
 
(d) “Message” means any communication transferred via the Licensed Software to 

the Recipient as follows: (i) a one minute or less verbal communication sent 
via telephonic means; (ii) a textual communication sent via cellular telephonic 
means having one hundred forty (140) or less characters; or (iii) a one page or 
less textual communication sent via facsimile. Any one communication in 
excess of these temporal/character/textual parameters shall constitute more 
than one Message, and shall be calculated based on the length of such 
communication as indicated above. For example, a verbal communication sent 
to one Recipient consisting of three minutes shall constitute three Messages, 
while a verbal communication to one Recipient consisting of three minutes 
and one second shall constitute four Messages.  

 
(e) “Recipient” means the identifying number of each communication device, 

including but not limited to landline telephones, cellular telephones, and fax 
machines, receiving transmissions sent by the LICENSEE via the Licensed 
Software. 

 
(f) “Related Parties” means the members, agents, employees and/or assigns of 

Jacosoft. 

  

BOS 10/5/11 p. 2



 2 
01JUNE2011  

 

Section 2.  Grant of License; Transfer of Licensee’s Information. 
 

(a) Grant.  Jacosoft grants to LICENSEE, and LICENSEE hereby accepts, a  
non-exclusive, license to use the Licensed Software according to the terms of 
this Agreement (“Grant of License”).  Any license granted under this 
Agreement is conditioned on LICENSEE’s remaining in compliance with all 
terms of this Agreement including LICENSEE’s full and continued payment 
of all fees and costs under this Agreement including under Section 5.   

(b) Prohibitions.  The rights granted LICENSEE under this Agreement are 
limited to the express terms hereof.  Specifically, no right is granted to 
LICENSEE to sell, reproduce, publish, license, distribute, disseminate, rent, 
and/or lease any portion of the Licensed Software.  Further, under no 
circumstances does Jacosoft grant to LICENSEE any right to reverse engineer, 
decompile, disassemble, modify, translate, and make any attempts to discover 
the source code of the Licensed Software.  The rights granted to LICENSEE 
herein are restricted for use solely by LICENSEE and its authorized users 
identified on Exhibit A. 

  
(c) Transfer of LICENSEE’s Information.  Jacosoft shall accomplish the import 

of LICENSEE’s information from LICENSEE’s current emergency 
notification contractor to Jacosoft within five (5) working days following the 
Effective Date.  LICENSEE understands that both the ability to accomplish the 
import and the timeliness of this transfer are contingent on the cooperation of 
LICENSEE’S current emergency notification contractor. 

 
 Section 3.  Intentionally Omitted. 

 Section 4.  Base Amount. 

(a)  For $8,800.00, Jacosoft shall provide LICENSEE on the date hereof with 
thirty thousand (30,000) Messages sent by LICENSEE through and in 
connection with the Licensed Software (the “Base Amount”). On the one year 
anniversary date of this Agreement, provided however that the original Base 
Amount from the initial year has NOT been completely utilized, the unused 
Messages from the original Message total shall carry over to the second year 
(the “First Year Carry Over Amount”).  Additional 10,000 Message blocks 
can be purchased for $500 each on the one-year anniversary date (the “Second 
Year Additional Message Amount”).  The sum of the First Year Carry Over 
Amount and Second Year Additional Message Amount is hereafter referred to 
as the “Second Year Base Amount”.  After the amount of Messages shall 
exceed the Base Amount for the first year, or shall exceed Second Year Base 
Amount for the second year, LICENSEE shall pay to Jacosoft all applicable 
fees that are due and payable under Section 5 for the remainder of the 
particular year. 

BOS 10/5/11 p. 3



 3 
01JUNE2011  

 

(b) Intentionally Omitted.   

(c) The amount due under subparagraph (a) above shall be paid by LICENSEE 
within 30 days following the date on which LICENSEE is notified in writing 
by Jacosoft that LICENSEE’s information has been successfully transferred to 
Jacosoft. 

Section 5.  Message Fees.   

(a) After LICENSEE has transmitted the Base Amount during the first year 
pursuant to Section 4, LICENSEE shall pay Jacosoft a per-Message fee of 
$0.055 (5.5 cents) for each Message transmitted to each Recipient in excess of 
the Base Amount during the first year. After LICENSEE has transmitted the 
Second Year Base Amount during the second year pursuant to Section 4, 
LICENSEE shall pay Jacosoft a per-Message fee of $0.055 (5.5 cents) for 
each Message transmitted to each Recipient in excess of the Second Year 
Base Amount during the second year.  After reaching the Base Amount or the 
Second Year Base Amount, all accumulated Message fees are determined on 
the last day of each calendar month, and such amounts are due and payable on 
or before the last day of the succeeding calendar month. Thereafter for the 
year in question, and in connection with any termination in compliance with 
Section 7, all Message fees are due and payable the last day of each calendar 
month. 

(b) Each Message shall be automatically counted by Jacosoft, and a running 
record of such count will be automatically updated and available on 
www.deltalert.com.  LICENSEE shall be solely and exclusively responsible 
for monitoring www.deltalert.com which shall set forth the amount of 
Messages accumulated and the related total of Message fees due.   

 
 Section 6.  Term.  This Agreement is effective as of the Effective Date and shall 
continue for a period of two (2) years thereafter (“Term”).    The Grant of License remains 
conditional, and is contingent on timely payment of all obligations by LICENSEE to Jacosoft 
in accordance with this Agreement.  Upon mutual agreement of the parties, this Agreement 
may be renewed  for one or more additional one (1) year Terms.  

Section 7.  Termination and/or Expiration of Term. 

(a) Termination by LICENSEE.  LICENSEE may terminate this Agreement , as 
provided in subparagraphs (1) through (2) below, subject to the following 
liability: 

(1) Upon ninety (90) days prior written notice by LICENSEE to Jacosoft 
after Acceptance of the Agreement.  

(2) LICENSEE may terminate this Agreement and any license granted 
hereunder upon notice if Jacosoft breaches a material term of this 

BOS 10/5/11 p. 4



 4 
01JUNE2011  

 

Agreement and fails to cure the breach within thirty (30) days 
following written notice specifying the breach.  If such breach is not 
reasonably curable within such thirty (30) day period, LICENSEE shall 
not unreasonably withhold approval of a longer cure period provided 
Jacosoft promptly commences to cure such a breach and continues to 
diligently pursue a cure of such breach.   

(b) Termination by Jacosoft.  Jacosoft may terminate the Agreement, as provided 
in subparagraphs (1) through (3) below, subject to the following liability: 

(1) Intentionally Omitted.   

(2) Jacosoft may terminate this Agreement and any license granted 
hereunder immediately if LICENSEE fails to pay timely the fees and 
costs payable in Section 5.  Further, Jacosoft may terminate this 
Agreement and any license granted hereunder upon notice if 
LICENSEE breaches a material term of this Agreement (other than the 
payment obligations under Section 5) and fails to cure the breach 
within thirty (30) days following written notice specifying the breach.  
If such breach is not reasonably curable within such thirty (30) day 
period, Jacosoft shall not unreasonably withhold approval of a longer 
cure period provided LICENSEE promptly commences to cure such a 
breach and continues to diligently pursue a cure of such breach.  Any 
unpaid Message fee owing at the time of Jacosoft’s termination under 
this Section 7(b) shall be accelerated and paid immediately upon 
termination. 

(3) Intentionally Omitted.   

(c) Effect of Termination or Expiration.  Upon termination of this Agreement for 
any reason or upon the expiration of the then current Term, all rights granted 
to LICENSEE under this Agreement cease including the Grant of License 
under Section 2.  LICENSEE’S and Jacosoft’s rights and obligations to be 
performed following termination or expiration of this Agreement under this 
Section and under Sections 2(b), 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17 
shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement.  In the event of a 
breach or default by Jacosoft, LICENSEE shall have access to all remedies 
available to it in equity or at law. 

(d) Return of Licensed Software.  Upon termination of this Agreement for any 
reason or upon the expiration of the then current Term, LICENSEE shall 
immediately (i) cease using the Licensed Software and all programs associated 
thereto; and (ii) if applicable, certify to Jacosoft within one month of such 
termination that LICENSEE has destroyed or has returned to Jacosoft the 
Licensed Software and all copies.  This requirement applies to copies in all 

BOS 10/5/11 p. 5



 5 
01JUNE2011  

 

forms, partial and complete, and all types of media and computer memory, and 
whether or not modified or merged into other materials. 

(e) Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason or upon the expiration of 
the then current Term, or at any other time upon the written request of 
LICENSEE, Jacosoft shall immediately deliver to LICENSEE, or to such other 
person or firm as may be designated by LICENSEE, all of LICENSEE’s 
information, including but not limited to information obtained via 
LICENSEE’s opt-in site, if any, in CSV format or such other format as may be 
agreed by LICENSEE and Jacosoft.  Jacosoft shall cooperate with LICENSEE 
to accomplish the orderly delivery and transfer of all of LICENSEE’s 
information, none of which shall be retained by Jacosoft.    

Section 8.  Limited Warranties. 

(a) Limitation of Warranties.  Except as provided in Sections 8(b), Jacosoft 
hereby makes no representations or warranties as to the Licensed Software. 

 
(b) Infringement.  Jacosoft warrants that neither the Licensed Software in the form 

delivered by Jacosoft to LICENSEE, nor its normal use, nor any deliverable 
provided pursuant to any services performed by Jacosoft hereunder, infringes 
or misappropriates any valid copyrights, trademarks, or trade secrets, 
provided, however, that this warranty does not extend to any infringement 
arising out of the use of the Licensed Software, otherwise than in normal use, 
in combination with systems, equipment or Licensed Software not supplied by 
Jacosoft or any use of the Licensed Software outside of the United States or 
any modification of the Licensed Software unless performed by or on behalf of 
Jacosoft.  Any and all damages that may be available to LICENSEE under this 
Section and this Agreement for a breach of the warranty under this paragraph 
shall not exceed what might be available to LICENSEE under Section 10.   

Section 9.  “AS IS” Warranty.  EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN 
SECTION 8(b), THE LICENSED SOFTWARE SERVICES BY JACOSOFT 
RELATED TO THE LICENSED SOFTWARE, ARE PROVIDED “AS IS” AND “AS 
AVAILABLE” AND WITHOUT REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES OR 
CONDITIONS OF ANY KIND, EITHER STATUTORY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
INCLUDING THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE AND NON-INFRINGEMENT. 
 
 ANY WARRANTY THAT IS PROVIDED IN CONNECTION WITH ANY OF 
THE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES THAT ARE PROVIDED BY ANY OF 
JACOSOFT’S SPONSORS, ADVERTISERS, LINKED SITES, CONTENT 
PROVIDERS OR SERVICE PARTNERS ARE PROVIDED SOLELY BY SUCH 
ENTITY OR THE MANUFACTURER OF THAT PRODUCT AND/OR SERVICE, 
AND NOT BY JACOSOFT. 

BOS 10/5/11 p. 6



 6 
01JUNE2011  

 

 THE PARTIES INTEND THAT THE LIMITED REMEDIES AND 
DISCLAIMERS CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION SHALL BE VALID AND 
ENFORCED EVEN IF THEY FAIL OF THEIR ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. 

 Section 10.  Limitation of Liability.  TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED 
BY APPLICABLE LAW, UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL JACOSOFT OR 
ITS RELATED PARTIES BE LIABLE FOR ANY OF THE FOLLOWING: (I) 
DIRECT DAMAGES IN EXCESS OF THE ACTUAL FEE(S) PAID BY LICENSEE 
TO DATE UNDER SECTIONS 4 AND 5 OR, (II) ANY INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, 
CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, OR OTHER INDIRECT DAMAGES 
WHATSOEVER (INCLUDING DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF PROFITS, GOODWILL, 
USE, DATA, OR OTHER INTANGIBLES) ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY 
CONNECTED WITH THESE TERMS OR THE SERVICES OR LICENSED 
SOFTWARE PROVIDED HEREUNDER WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, 
TORT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE, EVEN IF 
JACOSOFT OR ITS RELATED PARTIES HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE 
POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. 

 THE PARTIES INTEND THAT THE LIMITATIONS AND DISCLAIMERS 
CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION SHALL BE VALID AND ENFORCED EVEN IF 
THEY FAIL OF THEIR ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. 

 Section 11.  Effect of Regulation.  Should any local, state, or national regulatory 
authority having jurisdiction over LICENSEE enter a valid and enforceable order upon 
LICENSEE which has the effect of changing or superseding any term or condition of this 
Agreement, such order shall be complied with, but only so long as such order remains in 
effect and only to the extent actually necessary under the law.  In such event, this Agreement 
shall remain in effect, unless the effect of the order is to deprive LICENSEE of a material 
part of its Agreement with Jacosoft.  In the event this order results in depriving LICENSEE 
of a material part of this Agreement or raising their costs beyond that defined in this 
Agreement, LICENSEE shall have the right to rescind all or part of this Agreement (if such a 
rescission is practical) or to end the Agreement Term upon ninety (90) days written prior 
notice to Jacosoft, whereupon LICENSEE shall be entitled to a refund of any amount which 
has been paid to Jacosoft on account of the Base Amount or the Second Year Base Amount, 
as applicable, prorated based on the number of Messages remaining in such Base Amount or 
the Second Year Base Amount.   

 Section 12.  Intentionally omitted. 
 
 Section 13.  Indemnification. 
 

(a) By Jacosoft.  Jacosoft will indemnify and hold LICENSEE harmless from and 
against any third party claim of infringement, resulting from the warranty 
provided by Jacosoft to LICENSEE under Section 8(b), which, if true, would 
evidence a breach of that foregoing warranty, and all demands, actions, 
liabilities, judgments, damages, costs and expenses (including attorneys’ fees) 

BOS 10/5/11 p. 7



 7 
01JUNE2011  

 

provided:  (i) LICENSEE promptly notifies Jacosoft of any such infringement 
claim of which it has knowledge or notice; (ii) accords Jacosoft the right, at its 
sole option and expense, to handle the defense of the infringement claim, and 
to settle or resolve any such claim it deems appropriate.  If such an 
infringement claim arises, or if Jacosoft becomes aware of the possibility of 
such a claim, then Jacosoft may, in its discretion, in the following order of 
preference (i) furnish LICENSEE upon its approval with non-infringing 
replacement software or other deliverable if commercially reasonable for 
Jacosoft to perform; (ii) modify the Licensed Software or other deliverable so 
as to be non-infringing if commercially reasonable for Jacosoft to perform; 
(iii) obtain a license for LICENSEE to use the infringing software or other 
deliverable if commercially reasonable for Jacosoft to perform; or (iv) 
terminate this Agreement in whole or in part upon written notice to 
LICENSEE. 

(b) Non-liability.  Jacosoft and its Related Parties shall not be liable for claims by 
third parties arising out of any acts or omissions by LICENSEE in connection 
with LICENSEE’s use of the Licensed Software. 

 
 Section 14.  Intentionally Omitted.   

 Section 15.  Jacosoft Proprietary Rights and Marks.  LICENSEE acknowledges 
and agrees that the Licensed Software and this Agreement contains proprietary and 
confidential information that is protected by applicable intellectual property and other laws.  
“DeltAlert” and “Jacosoft” are the intellectual property of Jacosoft and LICENSEE may not 
display such marks without the written consent of Jacosoft.  The Licensed Software is 
licensed, and not sold.  Any source code to the Licensed Software that may be made 
available to LICENSEE is licensed, not sold.  All rights, title and interests in the Licensed 
Software and source code, whether tangible or intangible including, but not limited to, 
copyright, trademark and trade secret rights and further including any images, photographs, 
animations, video, audio, music, text and “applets” incorporated into the Licensed Software, 
and any copies of the Licensed Software (if any) are owned by Jacosoft.  LICENSEE may 
not remove the copyright or other proprietary notices (if any) from the Licensed Software or 
source code.  LICENSEE acknowledges that any use or disclosure of Jacosoft’s proprietary 
rights and marks as described in this paragraph in a manner inconsistent with the provisions 
of this Agreement will cause Jacosoft irreparable damage for which remedies other than 
injunctive relief will be inadequate, and LICENSEE agrees that Jacosoft shall be entitled to 
injunctive or other equitable relief enjoining such use or disclosure, without the posting of a 
bond or other security, in addition to any other remedies available by law or under this 
Agreement. 

 Section 16.  Confidentiality.  Jacosoft acknowledges and agrees that Jacosoft shall 
not use for any purpose other than the performance of services hereunder, or disclose to 
anyone other than officers, employees or representatives of Jacosoft with a need to know, 
any confidential information disclosed or made available to Jacosoft by LICENSEE, or to 

BOS 10/5/11 p. 8



 8 
01JUNE2011  

 

which Jacosoft had access, prior to or during the performance of services under this 
Agreement.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Confidential Information” shall be 
deemed to mean and include, but shall not be limited to, all information relating to 
LICENSEE’s confidential telephone number lists; provided, however, that the confidentiality 
and non-use obligations herein shall not apply to any such information (i) which was in 
Jacosoft’s possession prior to the time it was received from LICENSEE or came into 
Jacosoft’s possession thereafter, in each case lawfully obtained from a source other than 
LICENSEE and other than via LICENSEE’s opt-in site, if any, and not subject to any 
obligation of confidentiality or restriction on use; (ii) was developed independently by 
Jacosoft without reference to any information disclosed by or obtained from LICENSEE, as 
demonstrated by Jacosoft’s written records; or (iii) which is required to be disclosed by court 
order, governmental agency, operation of law or pursuant to judicial, administrative or 
regulatory process, provided Jacosoft gives LICENSEE prompt written notice of such 
prospective disclosure to permit LICENSEE an opportunity to move for a protective order or 
other appropriate relief.  Jacosoft shall take such reasonable actions with its employees and 
agents as necessary to effectuate the intent of this provision and the confidentiality 
obligations imposed by this Agreement.  Upon learning of any disclosure of LICENSEE’s 
Confidential Information not permitted under this Agreement, Jacosoft shall promptly notify 
LICENSEE in writing of such disclosure and take all steps necessary to return any disclosed 
information to LICENSEE and to prevent further improper disclosures.  Jacosoft 
acknowledges that any use or disclosure of LICENSEE’s Confidential Information in a 
manner inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement will cause LICENSEE irreparable 
damage for which remedies other than injunctive relief will be inadequate, and Jacosoft 
agrees that LICENSEE shall be entitled to injunctive or other equitable relief enjoining such 
use or disclosure, without the posting of a bond or other security, in addition to any other 
remedies available by law or under this Agreement. 

 Section 17.  Miscellaneous. 
 

(a) Governing Law, Venue and Jurisdiction.  This Agreement shall be governed by 
and construed in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, 
without reference to conflict of law principles.  Exclusive jurisdiction and 
venue of any dispute or matters involving litigation between the parties hereto 
shall be in the courts of Fluvanna County, Virginia.   

(b) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement with all its Exhibits  contain the entire 
understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and 
supersedes any prior agreement, understanding and communication between 
the parties, whether written or oral, with respect to such subject matter.  This 
Agreement can be amended only in writing signed by the parties.  In the event 
of conflicts, the document with the most recent date shall control over 
documents with earlier dates. 

(c) Transfer and Assignment.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, 
LICENSEE may not assign or transfer the Licensed Software or this 
Agreement to a third party without the prior written consent of Jacosoft.  This 

BOS 10/5/11 p. 9



 9 
01JUNE2011  

 

Agreement shall be binding on LICENSEE and on Jacosoft, its successors and 
assigns. 

(d) Severability; No Waiver.  In the event that any term or condition of this 
Agreement is determined to be invalid, illegal or otherwise unenforceable, 
such determination shall have no effect on the other terms and conditions, 
which shall continue to be binding upon the parties hereto.  Lack of 
enforcement of any term or condition in this Agreement shall not be construed 
as a waiver of any rights conferred by such term or condition. 

(e) Relationship.  No joint venture, partnership, employment, or agency 
relationship exists between LICENSEE and Jacosoft as a result of this 
Agreement or use of or access to the Licensed Software.  Jacosoft shall have 
sole responsibility for payment to its employees and its subcontractors, 
including all tax payments and report obligations. 

(f) Requirement to Give Notice of Consultants to Obtain Non-Disclosure 
Agreements.  Before the LICENSEE is permitted to hire a consultant to render 
assistance to LICENSEE in the setup of the Licensed Software or in the 
operations of the Licensed Software, LICENSEE must first provide written 
notice to Jacosoft as to the name and address of all such consultants and all 
such consultants must first sign a non-disclosure agreement in form and 
substance reasonably acceptable to and promptly provided by Jacosoft. 

(g) Survival Clause.  All duties and responsibilities of any party, which, either 
expressly or by their nature, extend into the future, shall extend beyond and 
survive the end of the contract Term or termination of this Agreement. 

(h) Notices Clause.  All notices or communications required or permitted as a part 
of the Agreement shall be in writing (unless another verifiable medium is 
expressly authorized) and shall be deemed delivered: 

(1) Three (3) days after deposit with the United States Postal Service 
authorized mail center with proper postage (certified mail, return 
receipt requested) affixed and addressed to the respective other party at 
the address set out in the section of the Agreement titled “Identification 
of the Parties to the Agreement”(Exhibit A) or such other address as the 
party may have designated by notice amendment to the other party, or 

(4) Upon delivery of the notice by a nationally recognized overnight 
 delivery service (e.g. Federal Express) to the respective other party at 
 the address set out in the section of the Agreement titled “Customer 
Identification” (Exhibit A) or such other address as the other party may 
have designated by notice amendment to the other party.   

(i) Internet Connection.   LICENSEE is solely responsible for attaining, 
maintaining, and ensuring any and all connections to the internet with respect 

BOS 10/5/11 p. 10



 10 
01JUNE2011  

 

to use of the Licensed Software.  Jacosoft shall have no responsibility to ensure 
LICENSEE or any Recipient acquires and maintains internet connectivity with 
respect to this Agreement, and shall bear no liability with respect to any loss, 
monetarily, personally, or otherwise, in connection with internet connectivity. 

(j) Password Confidentiality.  Jacosoft shall have no responsibility to ensure 
confidentiality of any password associated with Licensed Software, except as 
provided in Section 16.  LICENSEE shall bear sole responsibility for any 
liability or loss thereof from unauthorized use of any Licensed Software 
password. 

(k) Ownership of Information.  LICENSEE reserves its rights of ownership to all 
material and information given to Jacosoft by the LICENSEE, including but 
not limited to information obtained via LICENSEE’s opt-in site, if any. 

(k)   Appropriations.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the 
payment of the LICENSEE's obligations under this Agreement shall be subject 
to annual appropriations in each fiscal year of monies sufficient to satisfy the 
same. 

(l) Subcontractors.  In the event that any subcontractors are used by Jacosoft in 
connection with the work performed under this Agreement, Jacosoft shall: 

(a) Within 7 days after receipt of amounts paid to Jacosoft for work 
performed by a subcontractor, either: 

(1) Pay the subcontractor for the proportionate share of the total 
payment received attributable to the work performed by the 
subcontractor under this Agreement; or 

(2) Notify the LICENSEE and subcontractor, in writing, of its 
intention to withhold all or a part of the subcontractor's payment 
with the reason for nonpayment.    

(b) Jacosoft shall require (i) individual contractors to provide their social 
security numbers and (ii) proprietorships, partnerships, and 
corporations to provide their federal employer identification numbers.   

(c) Jacosoft shall pay interest to any subcontractor on all amounts owed by 
Jacosoft that remain unpaid after seven days following receipt by the 
contractor of payment from the LICENSEE for work performed by the 
subcontractor under this Agreement, except for amounts withheld as 
allowed in subdivision (a)(2) above.  Unless otherwise provided under 
the terms of this Agreement, interest shall accrue at the rate of one 
percent per month. 

BOS 10/5/11 p. 11



 11 
01JUNE2011  

 

(d)  Jacosoft shall include in each of its subcontracts under this Agreement 
a provision requiring each subcontractor to include or otherwise be 
subject to the above payment and interest requirements with respect to 
each lower tier subcontractor. 

(e) Jacosoft's obligation to pay an interest charge to a subcontractor 
pursuant to the payment clause in this section shall not be construed to 
be an obligation of the LICENSEE.  No contract modification may be 
made for the purpose of providing reimbursement for such interest 
charge.  No cost reimbursement claim may include any amount for 
reimbursement for such interest charge. 

(m) Non-discrimination Assurances. Jacosoft shall conform to the provisions of 
the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, as well as the Virginia Fair 
Employment Act of 1975, as amended, where applicable, and Section 2.2-4311 
of the Virginia Procurement Act. 

a.  During the performance of this Agreement, Jacosoft agrees as follows:  
Jacosoft will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age, 
disability, or other basis prohibited by state law relating to discrimination in 
employment, except where there is a bona fide occupational qualification 
reasonably necessary to the normal operation of Jacosoft. Jacosoft agrees to 
post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination 
clause.  Jacosoft, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed 
by or on behalf of Jacosoft, will state that Jacosoft is an equal opportunity 
employer.  Notices, advertisements and solicitations placed in accordance 
with federal law, rule or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the 
purpose of meeting the requirements of this section 

b. Jacosoft shall include the provisions of paragraph (a) above in every 
subcontract over $10,000.00 so that the provisions will be binding upon 
every subcontractor. 

(n) Drug Free Workplace.  During the performance of this Agreement,  Jacosoft 
agrees to (i) provide a drug-free workplace for Jacosoft's employees; (ii) post in 
conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, a 
statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, sale, 
distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or 
marijuana is prohibited in the contractor's workplace and specifying the actions 
that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition; (iii) 
state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf 
of Jacosoft that Jacosoft maintains a drug-free workplace; and (iv) include the 
provisions of the foregoing clauses in every subcontract of over $ 10,000, so 
that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor.  

BOS 10/5/11 p. 12



 12 
01JUNE2011  

 

For the purposes of this section, "drug-free workplace" means a site for the 
performance of work done in connection with a specific contract awarded to a 
contractor in accordance with the Virginia Public Procurement Act, the 
employees of whom are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful manufacture, 
sale, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of any controlled substance or 
marijuana during the performance of the contract.  

(o) Compliance with Immigration Law.  Jacosoft does not, and shall not during the 
performance of this Agreement, knowingly employ an unauthorized alien as 
defined in the federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986. 

(p) Modification.   This Agreement shall not be subject to change, modification, or 
discharge except by written instrument signed by the LICENSEE and Jacosoft. 

(q) Claims Procedure.  The procedure for consideration by the LICENSEE of 
contractual claims shall be that set forth in Virginia Code Section 15.2-1243, et 
seq.   

(r) Compliance with Law.  Jacosoft shall comply with applicable federal, state and 
local laws and regulations in the performance of this Contract.  

(s) Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of a dispute between LICENSEE and Jacosoft 
which cannot be amicably resolved, in addition to all other remedies, the party 
substantially prevailing in any litigation shall be entitled to recover its 
reasonable expenses, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees. 

  
(t) No Waiver.  Neither any payment for, nor acceptance of, the whole or any part of 

the services by LICENSEE, nor any extension of time, shall operate as a waiver 
of any provision of this Agreement, nor of any power herein reserved to the 
LICENSEE, or any right to damages herein provided, nor shall any waiver of any 
breach of this Agreement be held to be a waiver of any other or subsequent 
breach.  Failure of the LICENSEE to require compliance with any term or 
condition of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of such term or 
condition nor a waiver of the subsequent enforcement thereof. 

(u) No Finance Charges.  No finance charges shall be paid by LICENSEE. 

(v) Authorization to transact business.  If Jacosoft is organized as a stock or 
nonstock corporation, limited liability company, business trust, or limited 
partnership or registered as a registered limited liability partnership, Jacosoft 
shall be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth as a domestic or 
foreign business entity if so required by Title 13.1 or Title 50 of the Code of 
Virginia, or as otherwise required by law.  Jacosoft shall not allow its existence 
to lapse or its certificate of authority or registration to transact business in the 
Commonwealth, if so required, to be revoked or cancelled at any time during 
the term of this Agreement.   

BOS 10/5/11 p. 13



 13 
01JUNE2011  

 

(w) Sovereign Immunity. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to 
be a waiver of the sovereign immunity of LICENSEE. 

 

 

 

 

Signatures on following page 

BOS 10/5/11 p. 14



 14 
01JUNE2011  

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 

executed by their duly authorized representatives as set forth below. 
 

LICENSEE:  
 
Fluvanna County, Virginia     Jacosoft, LLC 
a political subdivision of the    a Texas limited liability company 
Commonwealth of Virginia 
       
      
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Signature       President 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Printed Name/Title     Date 
 
________________________________   
Date  
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Fluvanna County Attorney      

BOS 10/5/11 p. 15



 1 
01JUNE2011  

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

IDENTIFICATION  OF THE PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT 
 

 
	  

Description of Licensee.  The LICENSEE is defined as Fluvanna County, Virginia, 
a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia.  LICENSEE’s authorized users 
shall include all departments of the County, Fluvanna County 911 and Fluvanna County 
Sheriff’s Office.  Any notices to the LICENSEE shall be sent to: 

 
Fluvanna County 911 
c/o Fluvanna County Sheriff 
160 Commons Blvd. 
Palmyra, VA 22963 
 
with a mandatory copy to: 
 
Fluvanna County Administrator	  
P. O. Box 540 
Palmyra, VA 22963. 
 
 

 
 The identity of the LICENSEE is unique and material to this contract.  Therefore, use 
of the Licensed Software by the LICENSEE is intended to be limited to the organization and 
its authorized users as identified above.  
 
 Description of Jacosoft.  Jacosoft is defined as Jacosoft, LLC, a Texas limited 
liability company.  Any notices to Jacosoft shall be sent to: 
 
 Jacosoft, LLC 
 5300 Memorial Drive, Suite 940 

Houston, TX 77007. 
	  
	  
	  

 
 
 

BOS 10/5/11 p. 16



 

 2 
01JUNE2011  

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

LICENSED SOFTWARE DESCRIPTION 
 
 

DeltAlert is a web-based Mass Notification System that enables users to make time-sensitive announcements in a 

reliable, cost-effective, and efficient manner. This powerful and easy to use application provides users with control 

over how messages are sent and to whom. Most importantly, DeltAlert's cutting-edge integrated features simplify 

each step of the notification process. Below are a few examples: 

Adding Contacts 

Thanks to an optional opt-in/opt-out public portal, an intuitive contact import wizard, as well as optional integration 

with existing databases, adding and managing contacts is a streamlined process. 

Selecting Individuals to Alert 

DeltAlert gives you the flexibility to either alert individuals or notify specific groups of people. 

Generating a Message 

During the alert setup process, a user can upload a custom audio file or can use DeltAlert's text-to-speech feature to 

generate a realistic message. 

Initiating an Alert 

The alert setup wizard enables DeltAlert users to rapidly initiate an alert via multiple modes, such as by phone, text 

message, or email. 

Reporting 

Once an alert has been activated, the user can see the results of the campaign in real-time. Additionally, the system 

records pertinent data from each contact attempt, such as the time the alert was sent and which modes of delivery 

were successful. These reports can later be analyzed to determine the effectiveness of any deployment.

BOS 10/5/11 p. 17



 

 3 
01JUNE2011  

 

EXHIBIT C 
   

CUSTOMER SUPPORT INFORMATION 
 
 

 
24 HOUR CUSTOMER SUPPORT ACCESS 
 
866-749-9662   option 2 
 
 
24 HOUR CUSTOMER SUPPORT EMAIL 
 
dasupport@deltalert.com 
 

 
 
 
 

BOS 10/5/11 p. 18



MOTION:  I move to authorize the County Administrator to send a letter of support for the Thomas 
Jefferson Planning District Commission’s application for the Regional Brownfield Assessment and 
Planning Grant.   
 
AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS October 5, 2011 
 
SUBJECT:  Regional Brownfield Assessment and Planning Grant; letter of support for 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize letter of support. 
 
TIMING:  Needs action to submit with project funding application and for project support.   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  The Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission (TJPDC) is 
requesting the County’s support for this planning grant application. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None.  Possible future economic development benefit. 
 
DISCUSSION:  The Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission (TJPDC) plans to apply for a 
grant from the Environmental Protection Agency for a regional brownfields assessment project.  
The project will focus on economic development while addressing environmental contamination.  
Brownfields are properties afflicted by real or potential environmental contamination.  The nature 
of the contamination is generally low level, which would not pose a health threat to the property 
occupants or community, however, such contamination does cloud the property title resulting in 
underutilization of the property and stifling reinvestment.  By rehabilitating and reusing brownfield 
sites, it often results in an increased contribution to the tax base, eliminate blight that affects 
surrounding property, attracts jobs, reduces pressure to grow outward, and reduces risk of pollution 
migration and/or increased severity of contamination.   
 
The scope of work proposed includes: 
 

1) Outreach and Education: to diverse stakeholders and public to educate each on the 
challenges and opportunities of brownfields reuse 

2) Regional Inventory:  with a focus on sites that possess potential for redevelopment 
3) Organize Advisory Committee: to assist with site ID/historical use, and criteria 

development for selecting sites to further assess  
4) Conduct Phase I Environmental Site Assessments: on a subset of sites from the inventory 

based on guidance from committee 
5) Conduct Phase II Environmental Site Assessments: at least one Phase II ESA in each 

member locality based on guidance from committee 
6) Develop Remediation Plans: contract to develop clean-up plans based on findings from 

Phase II ESAs and guidance from committee 
 
The County’s role would be to designate a staff member to serve on the advisory committee for  
approximately 6 meetings per year for two years.  There is no match or contribution required. 
 
Please advise if further information is desired. 
 
Staff: Jay Scudder, County Administrator 
 
Attachments:    

A. TJPDC Letter of Support 
B. Brownfields Presentation 

 



October 15, 2011 
 
Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission 
Mr. Steve Williams 
401 E. Water St. 
Charlottesville, VA 22902 
 
Dear Mr. Williams: 
 
The County of Fluvanna is pleased to participate in the coalition of localities 
that are represented in the Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission’s 
(TJPDC) application to the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for the 
Thomas Jefferson Regional Brownfield Assessment and Planning Grant.  The 
County shares the TJPDC’s commitment to environmental stewardship and 
community development, both of which will be furthered by this project.  We 
are excited to assist the TJPDC in the inventory and site selection process, and 
already have sites in mind that would benefit the County, our citizens, and the 
environment if determined to be eligible for assessment activities.  Here, as in 
many communities, economic opportunities have fallen short of expectations in 
the recent past.  We believe the investment in troubled properties made possible 
by this funding will result in reinvestment and job creation that would have 
otherwise not occurred in Fluvanna County.  Additionally, the project will 
produce information on our vulnerability to environmental contamination, and 
establish the necessary steps to clean up pollution that potentially threatens our 
natural resources, health, and livelihood.     
 
The County sees this project as an opportunity to transform negative aspects of 
our communities into assets, improving the quality of life for our citizens and 
attracting positive attention from outside.  The TJPDC has conducted work on 
our behalf many times, and we have found it to be a very capable partner.  The 
Commission’s quality of work and comprehensive approach to regional issues 
uniquely qualifies them to undertake this project on behalf of the coalition 
members, each of which is affected by brownfields in their communities.  For 
these reasons, we hope the EPA will support the TJPDC’s proposal to assess 
and plan for brownfields remediation in our region.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jay Scudder, 
County Administrator 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
John Y. Gooch, Chairman 
Palmyra District 
 
Shaun V. Kenney, Vice Chair 
Columbia  District 
 
Donald W. Weaver 
Cunningham District 
 
Mozell H. Booker 
Fork Union  District 
 
Joseph C. Chesser 
Rivanna District 
 
Chris Fairchild 
Rivanna  District 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 STAFF 
 

P.O. Box 540 
Palmyra, VA 22963 

 

 (434) 591-1910 
 FAX (434) 591-1911 

www.co.fluvanna.va.us “Res

Jay Scudder 
County Administrator 
jscudder@co.fluvanna.va.us 
 
 
Mary L. Weaver 
Clerk to the Board 
mweaver@co.fluvanna.va.us 
 
  
 
 
 

ponsive & Responsible Government”

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA

2

ATTACHMENT A

mailto:mweaver@co.fluvanna.va.us


9/26/2011 

1 

Steve Williams, Executive Director 

Erin Yancey, Environmental Planner 

Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission 

Regional Brownfields  
Assessment Grant 
 The TJPDC plans to apply for a grant from the 

Environmental Protection Agency for a regional 
brownfields assessment project 

 The project focuses on economic development 
while addressing environmental contamination 

We request the support of Fluvanna County in 
this application 

3

ATTACHMENT B



9/26/2011 

2 

What is a Brownfield? 
 Property afflicted by real or potential 

environmental contamination 

Usually the contamination is low level and does 
not pose a health threat to occupants or 
community 

Contamination has clouded the property title, 
stifling reinvestment  

 The result is un- or underutilization of the 
property 

What are the Benefits of Reusing 
Brownfields? 
 Property redevelopment takes place 

 Increased contribution to tax base 

 Eliminate blight that affects surrounding property 

Attract jobs 

 Reduce pressure to grow outward 

 Reduce risk of pollution migration and/or 
increased severity of contamination 

4



9/26/2011 

3 

What Work is Proposed? 
1) Outreach and Education: to diverse stakeholders and public to 

educate each on the challenges and opportunities of brownfields reuse 

2) Regional Inventory:  with a focus on sites that possess potential for 
redevelopment 

3) Organize Advisory Committee: to assist with site ID/historical 
use, and criteria development for selecting sites to further assess  

4) Conduct Phase I Environmental Site Assessments: on a 
subset of sites from the inventory based on guidance from committee 

5) Conduct Phase II Environmental Site Assessments: at 
least one Phase II ESA in each member locality based on guidance from 
committee 

6) Develop Remediation Plans: contract to develop clean-up plans 
based on findings from Phase II ESAs and guidance from committee 

What would the County’s Role Be? 

 A staff member to serve on the advisory 
committee – approximately 6 meetings 
per year for two years 

 No match or contribution required 

5



9/26/2011 

4 

Steve Williams, Executive Director 
swilliams@tjpdc.org; (434)979-7310 ext. 110 

 
Erin Yancey, Environmental Planner 

eyancey@tjpdc.org; (434)979-7310 ext. 320 
 

Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission 

6

mailto:swilliams@tjpdc.org
mailto:swilliams@tjpdc.org









	Agenda  BOS Meeting October 5, 2011
	Minutes of BOS Mtg. September 21, 2011
	Residential BMP Cost Share & Outreach Program Services
	Accounts Payable
	JAUNT Annual Report
	Central Virginia Regional Jail Expansion Update
	Contract for webGIS Services & Site Enhancements
	Columbia Request for Services
	DeltAlert Emergency & Mass Notification System
	Thomas Jefferson Regional Brownfield Assessment and Planning Grant
	Economic Development and Tourism Director Position
	Contigency Memo



